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STRATHBOGIE SHIRE COUNCIL

Minutes of a Special Meeting of the Strathbogie Shire Council held on Tuesday 25
September 2018 at the Euroa Community Conference Centre commencing at 5.00 p.m.

Chair: Amanda McClaren (Mayor)

Councillors: John Mason (Deputy Mayor)
Debra Bower
Malcolm Little
Kate Stothers*
Alistair Thomson*
Graeme (Mick) Williams
(* Attended the meeting at 5.03 p.m.)

(Lake Nagambie Ward)

(Seven Creeks Ward)
(Lake Nagambie Ward)
(Hughes Creek Ward)
(Honeysuckle Creek Ward)
(Mount Wombat Ward)
(Seven Creeks Ward)

Officers: Steve Crawcour - Chief Executive Officer (CEQO)
Phil Howard - Director, Innovation and Performance (DIP)
David Roff - Group Manager, Corporate and Community (GMCC)
Jeff Saker - Group Manager, Community Assets (GMCA)

BUSINESS
1. Welcome
2. Acknowledgement of Traditional Land Owners

‘I acknowledge the Traditional Owners of the land on which we are meeting.
| pay my respects to their Elders, past and present’

3. Apologies

4. Disclosure of Interests
5. Petitions
6. Reports of Council Officers

6.1 Climate Change

6.2 Infrastructure

6.3 Private Enterprise

6.4 Public Institutions

6.5 Housing and Recreation
6.6 Tourism

6.7 Organisation

7. Urgent Business
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8. Closure of Meeting to the Public to consider matters listed for consideration in
accordance with Section 89(2)(d) of the Local Government Act 1989

9. Confirmation of ‘Closed Portion’ Decision/s

An audio recording of this meeting is being made for the purpose of verifying the
accuracy of the minutes of the meeting, as per Local Law No. 1 - Meeting Procedure
(2014) or as updated from time to time through Council Resolution
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REPORTS INDEX

6. REPORTS

6.7 Organisation

6.7.1 | Proposal to Declare Public Highway 1
- Receiving / Hearing of Submissions

6.7.2 | Four Vines Running Festival 7
- Traffic Management / Road Closures

6.7.3 | Adoption of 2017/2018 Annual Financial Report 17

6.7.4 | Adoption of Performance Statement 2017/2018 and Governance and 21
Management Checklist 2017/2018

7. URGENT BUSINESS 24

8. CLOSURE OF MEETING TO THE PUBLIC 24
To consider matters in accordance with Section 89(2) of the Local
Government Act 1989 —
(d) Contractual Matters
CP.1 Contract No. 18/19-07 ~ Evaluation Report

- Operation and Management of Euroa Swimming Pool
9. CONFIRMATION OF ‘CLOSED PORTION’ DECISION/S 25
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6.

6.7

6.7.1

REPORTS

ORGANISATION

Proposal to Declare Public Highway
- Receiving / Hearing of Submissions

Author and Department
Group Manager, Community Assets / Community Assets Directorate

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest in relation to advice provided in this
report

The author of this report and officers/contractors providing advice in relation to
this report do not have a direct or indirect interest, as provided in accordance with
the Local Government Act 1989.

Summary

At the Ordinary Council meeting on 17 July 2018, Council resolved to undertake a
section 223 submissions process calling for submission in relation to a proposal to
formally declare a road reserve to be Public Highway in accordance with section
204(1) of the Local Government Act 1987 (the Act).

A public notice was published on 25 July 2018, with 25 August 2018 as the
closing date for submissions.

One submission was received. The submittor did not request to address Council
in support of their written submission.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council, in relation to the Proposed Declaration of Public Highway,
resolves to: -

1. Receive the submission.

2, Consider and determine the submission at the Ordinary Council
meeting on Tuesday 16 October 2018.

33/18 CRS BOWER/MASON : That the Recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED

Background

Council has received a request from a Nagambie landowner and developer,
(Councillors have been previously provided with a copy of correspondence), to
lease part of a subdivisional road reserve which abuts their land (refer attached

plan).

The landowner’s intention would be to utilise the land in the road reserve to
accommodate traffic generated within his development, and to exclude public
access to the leased part of the road reserve.
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6.7.1

Proposal to Declare Public Highway
- Receiving / Hearing of Submissions (cont.)

The road reserve was created as part of a subdivision in 1872, refer attached plan
of subdivision. It provides access to the rear of the subdivisional allotments which
otherwise front High Street.

The road has potential to support the further development of land in the area by
way of: -

1. Continued access to the rear of the allotments.

2. Through access to either Vickers Road or Nook Road.

3. Providing access for emergency services vehicles or alternative emergency
routes.

4. Accommodating drainage or utility services to support further development,
and

5. Providing access for service utilities, e.g., garbage collection required for
further development.

An inspection of the road reserve carried out on 19" June 2018 has revealed the
existence of some fencing across the reserve and some drainage pipe, and other
material, stockpiled on the land.

The land forming part of the original subdivision abutting the road reserve from
High Street is zoned General Residential, and has the potential for further
subdivision.

A section of the road reserve at the Vickers Road end abuts an approved
subdivision proposal. The developer intends to construct a footpath within the
road reserve to connect a new reserve, within the subdivision, to the Nagambie
Recreation Reserve.

Alternative Options

The author and other officers providing advice in relation to this report have
considered potential alternative courses of action. No feasible alternatives have
been identified.

Risk Management
The author of this report considers that there are no significant Risk Management
factors relating to the report and recommendation.

Strategic Links — policy implications and relevance to Council Plan
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Council
Policies, key strategic documents and the Council Plan.

Best Value / National Competition Policy (NCP) / Competition and Consumer
Act 2010 (CCA) implications

The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Best Value,
National Competition Policy and Competition and Consumer Act requirements.

Financial / Budgetary Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no capital or
recurrent budget considerations.
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6.7.1

Proposal to Declare Public Highway
- Receiving / Hearing of Submissions (cont.)

Economic Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant
economic implications for Council or the broader community.

Environmental / Amenity Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant
environmental or amenity implications for Council or the broader community.

Community Implications

The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant
community or social implications for Council or the broader community other than
those described elsewhere in this report.

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006

The author of this report considers that the recommendation does not limit any
human rights under the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities
Act 20086.

Legal / Statutory Implications

The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no legal or
statutory implications which require the consideration of Council, other than those
identified.

Consultation
The proposed Section 223 process has provided an opportunity for the
community to consider the matter and respond to Council.

Attachments

e Submission

¢ Site Plan — Road to be proposed as Public Highway
¢ Original Subdivisional Plan
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Submission

20 August 2018

Dear Jeff,

Please find our submission to your proposal of a public highway that abuts 61 Vickers Road,
Nagambie as outlined in the Public Notice you forwarded to ourselves on the 25 July 2018.

We are concerned over the orientation of the subsequent houses that will be built on the
adjoining subdivision allotments, in the future, were this road to go ahead.

Subsequently we are writing to confirm that the access the road will bring to the subdivisional
allotments will be restricted to the rear of the properties as outlined. It is our understanding that
the front of these properties that abut ours will face inwards towards the centre of the
subdivision and not outwards over our property.

The Public Notice does state that this is the case however we are concerned how this will be
policed and monitored. We did not object to any of the conditions around the development of
this subdivision as it was proposed however the declaration of this road may see property
owners wishing to look outwards toward our allotment which we would strongly object to.

We are writing to request an assurance from the council that this will be the case and that it will
be strictly adhered to in the course of this development.

Warm regards,
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Site Plan — Road to be proposed as Public Highway
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6.7.2 Four Vines Running Festival
- Traffic Management / Road Closures

Authors and Department
Senior Technical Officer, Infrastructure / Community Assets Directorate
Visitor Economy & Events Coordinator / Corporate and Community Directorate

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest in relation to advice provided in this
report

The author of this report and officers/contractors providing advice in relation to
this report do not have a direct or indirect interest, as provided in accordance with
the Local Government Act 1989.

Summary

The event organizer, Matthew Morris (Running Tours Melbourne) & Melanie Likos
(Tour de Senses) are seeking Council, approval to conduct a Marathon event
between Avenel and Mitchellstown on Sunday 4th November 2018. The
marathon event goes through four vineyards — Fowles, Box Grove, Mitchelton
and Tahbilk.

This proposed event will require Council’s authorisation of a number of short-term
full and part road closures of local Shire roads, under Section 207 and Schedule
11, Clause 10 (1) (b) of the Local Government Act 1989 “Power to place
obstruction or barriers on a road temporarily”.

The event would be managed by a professional traffic management company,
who would close and the progressively re-open some roads as the event passes.
More information on the website: https://www.fourvinesrunningfestival.com.au/

Proposed Road Closures

Town / Road Direction of affected | Time road will be
traffic closed

Avenel

Lambing Gully Road Full road closure 6:40-6:46AM

Henry Street Service Lane Full road closure 6:40-6:49AM

Hughes Street from Henry Street to Northbound closure 6:40-6:57AM
Kent Street

Aerodrome Road from Kent Street to North/AWestbound 6:40-7:10AM
Jessops Lane

Jessops Lane and Burrows Lane from | Full road closures 6:50-7:35AM
Aerodrome Road (near Avenel ralil
crossing) to Aerodrome Road (near
Mangalore airport)
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6.7.2 Four Vines Running Festival
- Traffic Management / Road Closures (cont.)

Proposed Road Closures (cont.)

Mangalore

Aerodrome Road from Burrows Lane Westbhound closure 6:55-8:10AM
to Doherty Road

Doherty Road from Aerodrome Road | Southbound closure 7:05-8:25AM
to Stock Route at Hughes Creek

Doherty Road from Stock Route at Southbound traffic 7:05-9:30AM
Hughes Creek to approx. 300m north
of Hughes Creek

Nagambie

Newnhams Road from Stock Route to | Full road closure 7:30-10:10AM
Mitchellstown Road

Mitchellstown Road from Goulburn Eastbound closure 7:40-10:30AM
Valley Freeway to Mullers Road

Mitchellstown Road from Mullers Road | Eastbound closure 7:00AM-11:05AM
to Northwood Road

Mullers Road from Mitchellstown Road | Southbound closure 7:00AM-12:40PM
to Oneills Road

Oneills Road from Mullers Road into Westbound closure 7:00AM- 1:00PM
Tahbilk

RECOMMENDATION

That Council approve the short term full and partial road closure of the
roads as per the above detail on Sunday 4" November 2018, allowing
Running Tours Melbourne to conduct a full and half marathon event as per
attached Traffic management plans and road closure documents.

34/18 CRS LITTLE/BOWER : That the Recommendation be adopted.
CARRIED

Background:

Council (Events and Infrastructure departments) have been working with
Melbourne Running Tours, to devise a suitable Traffic Management Plan for the
proposed Marathon event ‘4 Vines Festival to be held around Avenel and
Nagambie on Sunday 4™ November 2018.
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6.7.2 Four Vines Running Festival
- Traffic Management / Road Closures (cont.)

The marathon event comprises of both full marathon (42km) and half marathon
(21km) lengths.

The full marathon would start at Fowles Winery in Avenel at 6.00am, and is
proposed to utilise the following Shire roads:

Lambing Gully Road

Henry Street

Hughes Street

Aerodrome Road

Jessops Lane

Burrows Lane

Doherty Road

Stock Route underpass under Goulburn Valley Freeway (Council /
Vicroads responsibility)

Newnhams Road

Mitchellstown Road

Northwood Road

Mullers Road

ONeils Road

VVVVY VVVVVVVY

The half marathon would start at Tahbilk Winery at 7.00am and is proposed to
utilise the following Shire roads:

Mitchellstown Road

Northwood Road

Mullers Road

ONeils Road

YV VVY

e The anticipated road closures would be from 6.00am. Roads would be able to
be re-opened by the race sweeper as soon as the race passes through.

* The following roads would require longer duration road closures as both half
and full marathons will be utilizing these roads:
> Mitchellstown Road — between Mullers Road and Northwood Road
> Mullers Road — between ONeils Road and Mitchellstown Road ONeils

Road

» Northwood Road — between Mitchellstown Road and approx. 700m south

e Prior to, and on the day of the event, the organisers will implement VicRoads
approved variable message signs on Mitchellstown Road to inform road users
of the proposed temporary road closures and altered traffic flow / detour
conditions.

¢ Prior to, and on the day of the event, the organisers will implement appropriate
coreflute notification signs on Aerodrome Road, Mitchellstown Road, ONeils
Road, Northwood Road and Mullers Road to inform road users of the
proposed temporary road closures and altered traffic flow / detour conditions.

¢ Prior to the event, the organisers will place local newspaper advertisements to
inform the public of the proposed road closures.

¢ VicRoads & VicPol have already provided “in-principle” approval for this event
to take place
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6.7.2 Four Vines Running Festival
- Traffic Management / Road Closures {cont.)

¢ Running Tours Melbourne have been liaising with Tahbilk & Mitchelton
Wineries, Mangalore Airport and GoNagambie to speak to businesses and
provide them with details of the event.

« One way vehicle movement may be possible via traffic control each side of the
bridge over the Goulburn River (Matt confirmed traffic controllers will be
located at all necessary locations between to the west of the GV Freeway to
enable vehicle movements, whenever lulls in competitors permit, between 6.00
am and 12.45pm)

e The full marathon route has two rail crossings. Running Tours Melbourne will
contact ARTC, VicTrack and V/Line to ascertain exact time of train crossings.
They will adjust start times to ensure safe passage for participants. They will
also have course marshals at these points, and should a train come through,
participants will be stopped. This will be part of the event briefing and race
rules.

For the half marathon course, first runners would finish about 8:15AM based on a
6:00AM race start at Tahbilk, most runners would be finish by 9:15AM (2hr15 Half
Marathon), after that would be a few stragglers.

For the marathon course, first runners would finish about 9:45AM based on a
7:00AM race start at Fowles, most runners would be finish by 11:30AM (4hr 30
Marathon).

Alternative Options:

The author and other officers providing advice in relation to this report have
considered potential alternative courses of action. No feasible alternatives have
been identified

Risk Management:

The organiser of this event have provided Council with detailed event
management and traffic management plans, a thorough risk assessment and
evidence of the required public liability insurance policies. The relevant officers
within Council have assessed all of this submitted documentation and determined
that all of the required measures are in place for this event to take place safely.

Strategic Links — policy implications and relevance to Council Plan:
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Council
Policies, key strategic documents and the Council Plan.

Best Value / National Competition Policy (NCP) / Competition and Consumer
Act 2010 (CCA) implications:

The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Best Value,
National Competition Policy and Competition and Consumer Act requirements.

Financial / Budgetary Implications:
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no capital or
recurrent budget considerations.
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6.7.2 Four Vines Running Festival
- Traffic Management / Road Closures (cont.)

Economic Implications:

This event will attract a significant number of people to Nagambie, both from
within the local community and also from further afield. This influx of patrons
attending this event will provide significant economic benefits to many local
businesses.

Environmental / Amenity Implications:
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant
environmental or amenity implications for Council or the broader community.

Community Implications:

o Some local residents may experience minor vehicular transit delays as a result
of the proposed altered traffic conditions

e Access to Mangalore Airport, Mitchelton and Tahbilk wineries will be limited
until late morning. A letter of their approval of the event and road closure times
is attached.

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006:

The author of this report considers that the recommendation does not limit any
human rights under the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities
Act 2006.

Legal / Statutory Implications:

The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no legal or
statutory implications which require the consideration of Council, other than the
exercise of powers under the Local Government Act 1989.

Consultation:

e This matter will require Council consideration and community consultation.

¢ Residents along the route will be notified with letter drops.

* Notification of this event and road closures will be advertised in the local
media.

e There will also be VMS (Variable Message Signs) and appropriate corflute
advisory signage placed at strategic locations in order to inform people in the
lead up to the event.

Attachments
e Overall Traffic Management Plan

o Letters of support
s Draft letter to residents
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Overall Traffic Management Plan
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Letters of support

19" March 2018

I am writing to express Tahbilk Winery’s support of the Four Vines Running Festival as
organised by Matthew Morris and Melanie Likos for Sunday 4 November.

Tahbilk understands that there will be traffic controls in place leading into Tahbilk and will
liaise with the organisers to ensure that traffic management is reasonable and controllable.

1'am looking forward to the event as it looks to drive tourism into the Goulburn River and
Strathbogie regions.

Kind Regards,

Bruce Minchinton

Tahbilk Wine Club & Cellar Door Operations Manager
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4

MITCHELTON

Running Tours Melbourne

ATT: Matthew Morris

Dear Matthew,

| am writing to express Mitchelton Winery’s support of the Four Vines Running
Festival as organised by Matthew Morris and Melanie Likos for Sunday 4
November.

Mitchelton understands that there will be traffic controls in place leading into
Mitchelton and will liaise with the organisers to ensure that traffic management
is reasonable and controllable.

| am looking forward to the event as it looks to drive tourism into the Goulburn
River and Strathbogie regions.

Kind regards,

Sarah Bolitho
Sales Manager

Mitchelton

470 MITCHELLSTOWN RD
NAGAMBIE VIC 3608
AUSTRALIA
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Draft letter to residents

Running in aid of:

FOUR VINES E
’ childrén

foundation

Four Vines Running Festival

8C Stadium Circuit

Mulgrave VIC 3170
hello@fourvinesrunningfestival.com.au

September 30,2018

Dear Resident

NOTICE OF UPCOMING ALTERED ROAD CONDITIONS IN YOUR AREA

The Four Vines Running Festival is a community running event being held between Avenel and Nagambie on Sunday 4
November 2018. The event, raising funds for the Children First Foundation features six running events: marathon, half
marathon, 10km, 5km, 2km kids run and a dash for cash. For more information about the Children First Foundation visit

http://childrenfirstfoundation.org.au/

The event will be based at Tahbilk Winery. The marathon will start at Fowles Wine in Avenel and run through Avenel to
Tahbilk via Box Grove Vineyard and Mitchelton Wines. The half marathon will start and finish at Tahbilk and visit
Mitchelton on essentially an out and back course. All other events are entirely on the Tahbilk property including the

finish line festival with food & wine, live music and kids entertainment.

This purpose of this letter is to inform you that a number of roads in your area will be under traffic control consisting of
altered road conditions and/or temporary closures on the morning of Sunday 4 November 2018. The roads that are
affected and expected times that runners will moving through each road are as follows. Set up of traffic controls may

commence earlier than the times specified.



Strathbogie Shire Council Page 16 25/08/18
Special Council Meeting Minutes

In the event of an emergency

If during the event, an emergency arises please do not hesitate to contact 000 as with any other emergency. Please
inform the operator of altered road conditions in the area. Traffic control will allow any emergency vehicle through and
we'll manage the runners around this.

On the morning of the event

e Traffic control and the event committee will set up the course between 5:00am and 7:00am

e At 6:45am from Fowles and Tahbilk, an official vehicle with hazard lights will drive the course to ensure the
course is clear.

o Events will commence at Fowles and Tahbilk, both at 7:00am. A cyclist will ride ahead of the race leaders.

e An official will be employed to run or walk behind the last runner to ensure the race is moving. Following this,
traffic control will begin to pack up.

e We anticipate to reopen roads sooner than stated and have no intention to have roads closed or affected

unnecessarily.

Should you need to use the road to exit or enter your property on the morning, please let us know or speak to one of our
traffic controllers in the area on the day and they will be able to assist you to safely move your vehicle. Alternatively,
for residents in Avenel, as only the northbound lane is affected, parking on the southbound side of the road is an option

too.

If you have any queries or concerns about this please contact Matt Morris on 0430472975 or

ello@fourvinesrunningfestival.com.au

If you are a keen runner, then we would love to invite you along to join in one of our events. You can choose from a
marathon, half marathon, 10km, 5km or a 2km kids race. At the Tahbilk finish line there are food & wine, a pop up pub,
live music and kids entertainment. To join us head to www.fourvinesrunningfestival.com.ay and use the discount code
RCA10.

Attached to this letter is a course map to show you visually which roads are affected. Thank you for taking the time to

read this, and we apologise in advance if these changes in road conditions may affect your Sunday morning.

Regards

Matthew Morris & Melanie Likos

Four Vines Running Festival
www.fourvinesrunninafestival.com.au
hello@fourvinestunninafestival.com.au
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6.7.3 Adoption of 2017/2018 Annual Financial Report

Author & Department
Group Manager, Corporate and Community / Corporate and Community
Directorate

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest in relation to advice provided in this
report

Officers providing advice in relation to this report do not have a direct or indirect
interest, as provided in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989.

Summary

The Local Government Act 1989 requires that Council pass a resolution giving its
approval to the Annual Financial Report prior to formal submission to the Auditor-
General Victoria and the Minister. The Act further requires that Council must
authorise two Councillors to approve the Report.

Draft copies of the Annual Financial Report have been circulated to Councillors
with this report for their consideration, and are tabled for information purposes.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

1. Notes the Recommendation of the Audit Committee;

2. Approve in principle the 2017/2018 Annual Financial Report;

3. Authorise Councillors McClaren and Williams to sign the 2017/2018
Annual Financial Report;

4. Authorise the Chief Executive Officer, Steve Crawcour, to make
minor amendments to the 2017/2018 Annual Financial Report, if
required. and brief Council if amendments are made;

5. Authorise the Chief Executive Officer, Steve Crawcour, to certify the
2017/2018 Annual Financial Report;

6. Upon receipt of the Auditor's Certified Report, submit the Annual
Report to the Minister and make the Annual Report available for
public inspection.

35/18 CRS MASON/LITTLE : That the Recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED

Background
The Victorian Auditor-General’'s Office has completed the external audit of the
2017/2018 Financial Report.
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6.7.3 Adoption of 2017/2018 Annual Financial Report (cont.)

The Annual Financial Report consisting of the Financial Statements and Notes
(refer Appendix A) has been prepared in accordance with relevant legislation,
applicable Australian Accounting Standards and other related accounting
guidelines.

The Audit Committee, at its meeting on Friday 14 September 2018, in accordance
with the Local Government Act 1989, having reviewed the Annual Financial
Report consisting of the Financial Statements and Notes, was expected to have
recommended that Council adopt the 2017/2018 Annual Financial Report on an
“in principle” basis, and this will be reported on verbally to the Council meeting.

The Victorian Auditor-General's certification is anticipated in late September
2018.

Discussion

The Annual Financial Report is prepared strictly in accordance with the applicable
Australian Accounting Standard which includes the Australian equivalent to
International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS). These Standards require
the preparation of five mandatory statements. These statements include —

e “Comprehensive Income Statement” (Operating — Accrual Statement). This
comprises non-cash items such as Depreciation and cost of goods (assets)
sold, and excludes Capital Expenditure and Transfers to and from Other
Reserves.

¢ “Balance Sheet” which lists Councils’ assets and liabilities. It indicates the
overall financial position of Council.

e “Statement of Changes in Equity”. This indicates movement sin Council’s
Reserve Funds.

e “Statement of Cash Flows”. This indicates all cash expended and received
for all activities during the financial year.

e “Statement of Capital Works” which details Council's capital works
expenditure for the financial year. [t sets out the expenditure on creating or
buying property, infrastructure, plant and equipment by each category of
asset.

For the 201672018 financial year, Council is also required to prepare two “Budget
Comparison Notes” with variance explanations to the 2017/2018 Annual Budget.
These being -

1. Income and Expenditure
2. Capital Works

The following analysis of the 2017/2018 Annual Financial Report is at a macro
level, which reflects the nature of the Report’s disclosures. It is not designed nor
intended to be used as a Management report that provides details of programs, or
resultant variances. No analysis has been provided for the Statement of Changes
in Equity. ~
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6.7.3 Adoption of 2017/2018 Annual Financial Report (cont.)

1.

Income Statement

The operating result represents the accrual accounting treatments, which
includes the non-cash items of depreciation and cost of goods (assets)
sold, but excludes expenditure on Capital items, loan proceeds and loan
principal repayments and transfers to and from other reserves.

For the year ended 30 June 2018, Council reported a net surplus of
$856,363, which was affected principally by grant revenue received in
advance, reduced borrowing costs and contributed assets. An additional
provision of $3.7 million for rehabilitation of the Violet Town landfill has
been provided for in arriving at this result.

Balance Sheet

Council’s Balance Sheet indicates that Council’s overall financial position
and its cash and liquidity position is sound and within acceptable financial
parameters.

Council's cash position as at 30 June 2018 was represented by cash on
hand and investment of $14.08 million. This represents a decrease in
cash holdings of $.364 million during the 2017/18 financial year. A
number of capital works will be carried over into the 2018/19 financial
year.

The value of Council's property, infrastructure, plant and equipment non-
current assets as at 30 June 2018 is $286.7 million, a similar figure to that
as at 30 June 2017, due primarily to the revaluation of Council’s property
and infrastructure assets and the acquisition of assets as part of Council’'s
capital works program.

Council’s end-of-year working capital ratio is 2.81:1, which is greater than
the target ratio of 1.5:1.  This ratio is used to assess Council’s ability to
meet current commitments and is derived by dividing current assets by
current liabilities.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow is favorable primarily due to under expenditure in capital works
as a result of a number of projects carried forward to 2017/2018.

Statement of Capital Works

Council completed $10.189 million worth of projects for 2017/2018, an
increase of 54% over the previous year as carried over works from
2016/17 were completed and flood recovery works (externally funded)
were undertaken.

A number of projects will be carried forward to the 2018/29 year.
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6.7.3 Adoption of 2017/2018 Annual Financial Report (cont.)

Risk Management
Council has addressed any risks associated with the preparation of the reports by
applying accepted accounting standards, where applicable.

Strategic Links — policy implications and relevance to Council Plan
The report is consistent with Council Policies, key strategic documents and the
Council Plan.

Best Value / National Competition Policy (NCP) / Competition and Consumer
Act 2010 (CCA) implications

The statements have been prepared using the Local Government Model Report
2015 as issued by Local Government Victoria.

Financial / Budgetary Implications
The financial results are shown in the statements.

Economic Implications
The report has no significant economic implications for Council or the broader

community.

Environmental / Amenity Implications
The report has no significant environmental or amenity implications for Council or
the broader community.

Community Implications
The report has no significant community or social implications for Council or the
broader community.

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006
The report does not limit any human rights under the Victorian Charter of Human
Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006.

Legal / Statutory Implications

The proposal is consistent with sections 131 and 132 of the Local Government
Act 1989 which, amongst other things, requires the Council to “certify the
statements in their final form”.

Consultation
Council staff and Council’s external auditor, the Victorian Auditor-General’s Office
and Council’s Audit Committee have been consulted as part of the preparation of
these reports.

Attachments / Tabled Document/s
e Appendix A: Annual Financial Report 2017/2018 (separately circulated)
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6.7.4 Adoption of Performance Statement 2017/2018 and Governance and
Management Checklist 2017/2018

Author& Department
Group Manager, Corporate and Community / Corporate and Community
Directorate

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest in relation to advice provided in this
report

Officers providing advice in relation to this report do not have a direct or indirect
interest, as provided in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989.

Summary

The Local Government Act 1989 requires that Council pass a resolution giving its
approval to the Performance Statement 2017/2018 and Governance and
Management Checklist prior to formal submission to the Auditor-General Victoria
and the Minister. The Act further requires that Council must authorise two
Councillors to approve the Report.

Draft copies of the Performance Statement 2017/2018 and Governance and
Management Checklist have been circulated to Councillors with this report for
their consideration, and are tabled for information purposes.

RECOMMENDATION
1. That Council adopt, in principle, the —

a) Performance Statement 2017/2018.
b) Governance and Management Checklist 2017/2018.

2. That Council authorise Councillors McClaren and Williams to sign
the 2017/2018 Performance Statement.

36/18 CRS BOWER/WILLIAMS : That the Recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED

Background

Under Section 131 of the Local Government Act 1989, the Annual Budget
2017/2018 included a list of prescribed indicators of service performance,
financial and sustainable capacity performance required by regulations to be
reported against in the performance statement. The Performance Statement
represents an independent certification of Council’s results against the prescribed
indicators.  In addition, Section 131 requires Council to report on Council's
assessment against the prescribed governance and management checklist for
2017/2018.



Strathbogie Shire Council Page 22 25/08/18
Special Council Meeting Minutes

6.7.4 Adoption of Performance Statement 2017/2018 and Governance and
Management Checklist 2017/2018 (cont.)

Discussion

This is the fourth year of operation of the Local Government Performance
Reporting Framework (LGPRF). There is a comparison between 2014/2015,
2015/2016 ,2016/2017 and 2017/18 with comments detailing any variances. All
data was collected according to the Local Government Act 1989 and Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

Subject to Council adopting the recommendation in this report, the Performance
Statement will be forwarded to the Victorian Auditor-General for certification. It is
also a statutory requirement for Council to include the Performance Statement in
the Annual Report 2017/2018.

Risk Management
Council has addressed any risks associated with the preparation of the reports by
applying accepted accounting standards, where applicable.

Strategic Links — policy implications and relevance to Council Plan
The report is consistent with Council Policies, key strategic documents and the
Council Plan.

Best Value / National Competition Policy (NCP) / Competition and Consumer
Act 2010 (CCA) implications

The statements have been prepared using the Local Government Model Report
2016 as issued by Local Government Victoria.

Financial / Budgetary Implications
The financial results are shown in the statements.

Economic Implications
The report has no significant economic implications for Council or the broader
community.

Environmental / Amenity Implications
The report has no significant environmental or amenity implications for Council or
the broader community.

Community Implications
The report has no significant community or social implications for Council or the
broader community.

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006
The report does not limit any human rights under the Victorian Charter of Human
Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006.

Legal / Statutory Implications

The proposal is consistent with sections 131 and 132 of the Local Government
Act 1989 which, amongst other things, requires the Council to “certify the
statements in their final form”.
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6.7.4 Adoption of Performance Statement 2017/2018 and Governance and
Management Checklist 2017/2018 (cont.)

Consultation
Council staff and Council’s external auditor, the Victorian Auditor-General’s Office
and Council’s Audit Committee have been consulted as part of the preparation of
these reports.

Conclusion
The Chief Executive Officer and two Councillors are required to sign the
Performance Statement (refer Appendix A — separately circulated). It is

recommended that Council adopt, in principle, the Performance Statement,
shown as Appendix A.

The Chief Executive Officer and one Councillor are required to sign the
Governance and Management Checklist (refer Appendix B — separately
circulated). It is recommended that Council adopt, in principle, the Governance
and Management Checklist, shown as Appendix B.

Appendices
e Appendix A: Strathbogie Shire Council Performance Statement 2017/2018
e Appendix B: Governance and Management Checklist 2017/2018

Tabled Document/s
e Strathbogie Shire Council Performance Statement 2017/2018
e Governance and Management Checklist 2017/2018
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7.

39/18

URGENT BUSINESS
Nil

CLOSURE OF MEETING TO THE PUBLIC TO CONSIDER MATTERS LISTED
FOR CONSIDERATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 89(2) OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1989

5.15 p.m.
CRS BOWER/MASON -

That Council, in conformance with Section 89(2) of the Local Government
Act 1989, resolve to close the meeting to members of the public for the
purpose of considering items relating to:-
- Ground(s) under section 89(2):

89(2)(d) Contractual Matters

C.P. 1 Contract No. 18/19-07 ~ Evaluation Report
- Operation and Management of Euroa Swimming
Pool

37/18 ON BEING PUT, THE MOTION WAS CARRIED

5.21 p.m.
CRS WILLIAMS/LITTLE -

That Council open the meeting to members of the public and resume
normal business.

ON BEING PUT, THE MOTION WAS CARRIED
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9. CONFIRMATION OF ‘CLOSED PORTION’ DECISION/S
Closed Portion Decision/s -

C.P. 1 Contract No. 18/19-07 ~ Evaluation Report
- Operation and Management of Euroa Swimming Pool

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the tender received from GL & BA Brooks for Contract 18/19-07
— Operation and Management of Euroa Swimming Pool be accepted
by the Council.

2. That Council Officers work with the successful tenderer to develop a

Pool Marketing strategy and Events Program for the Euroa Pool for
the 2018/2019 pool season.

3. That Council Officers report back to Council on the development of
the Marketing Strategy and Pool Events Calendar for the Euroa Pool
for the 2018/2019 pool season and costs associated with its
implementation for endorsement.

4, That the unsuccessful tenderers be notified.

5. That the Council endorses the signing and sealing of the contract
documents once received.

38/18 CRS MASON/WILLIAMS : That the Recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED

RECOMMENDATION

CRS MASON/WILLIAMS -

That the decision/s of Council’s ‘Closed Portion’ considerations be
confirmed.

40/18 ON BEING PUT, THE MOTION WAS CARRIED

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS, THE MEETING CLOSED AT 5.22 P.M.
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Certification of the Financial Statements

In my opinion the accompanying financial statements have been prepared In accordance with the Local Govemment Act 1969, the Local Government (Planning and
Reporting) Regulations 014 , Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporiing requirements.

Chamind&Rénwala CPA, ACMA,CGMA
Principal Accounting Officer

Date: 21 September 2018
Euroa, Victoria

in our opinion the accompanying financial statements present fairly the financial transactions of Strathbogie Shire Councll for the year ended 30 June 2018 and the
financial posttion of the Council as at that date.

As at the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars in the financlal statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the Councll and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporling) Regulations 2014 to certify the financial statements in thelr final fom.

Amanda McClaren

Mayor

Date: 25 September 2018
Euroa

ST A

Graeme (Mick) Williams
Councillor

Date : 25 September 2018

g Crawcour

Chitef Executive Officer

Date : 25 September 2018
Euroa
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Comprehensive Income Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018

Note 2018 2017
$ §

Income
Rates and charges 21 18,525,521 18,066,579
Stalulory fees and fines 22 463,093 389,726
User fees 2.3 683,723 700,096
Grants - operaling 24 7,030,203 8,040,081
Grants - capital 24 3,234,111 3,194,120
Contributions - monetary 25 375,105 426,872
Confributions - non monetary 25 1,285,840 562,892
Net profit on disposal of property, Infrastructure, plant and equipment 26 97,362 -
Share of net profits (or foss) of associates 53 - 2,981
Other Income ) 27 853,311 813,574
Total income 32,548,270 32,196,921
Expenses
Employee costs 3.1 (9,095,532) (8,981,770)
Malerials and services 3.2 (12,102,108) (11,444,645)
Depreciation 33 (6,802,643) (5,347,074)
Borrowing cosls 35 (54,019) {77,703)
Net loss on disposal of properly, Infrastiucture, plant and equipment 26 - {164,466)
Share of net profits (or loss) of associates 53 (8,514) -
Other expenses 36 {4,629,091) (989,883)
Total expenses (31,691,907) (27,005,541)
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 856,363 5,191,380
Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods
Net asset revaluation Increment/(decrement) 52 {3,370,958) 9,810,761
Share of other comprehensive income of associates and jolnt ventures 53 - -
Total comprehensive result (2,514,595) 15,002,144

The above comprehensive income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2018
Note 2018 2017
$ $

Assels
Gurrent assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,1 14,077,793 12,242,105
Trade and other receivables 4.4 2,185,052 1,754,830
Other financial assets 4.4 - 2,200,000
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 5.1 718,400 926,800
Other assels 4.2 511,059 322,156
Total current assets 17,492,303 17,445,891
Non-current assets
Other financial assets 4.1 2,032 2,032
Trade and other receivables 4.1 48,771 64,815
investments In associates, Joint arangements and subsidiaries 53 235,987 244,501
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 52 286,718,423 285,836,580
Total non-curent assefs 287,005,213 286,147,928
Total assets 304,497,518 303,593,819
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 43 2,806,578 3,121,293
Trust funds and deposits 43 893,656 352,439
Provisions 45 2,338,305 3,164,538
Interest-bearing liabilities 44 185,720 511,551
Total current liabilities 6,224,260 7,149,821
Non-current liabilities
Trust funds and deposlis 4.3 64,203 63,486
Provisions 45 5,696,602 1,158,453
Interest-bearing liabilities 44 504,914 690,634
Total non-current liabiiities 6,265,718 1,912,573
Total Habllities 12,489,978 9,062,394
Net assets 292,007,538 294,531,425
Equity
Accumulated surplus 86,990,300 86,289,937
Reserves 8.1 205,017,238 208,241,488
Total Equity 292,007,538 294,531,425

The above balance sheet should be read In conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018

Nofe Accumulated Revaluation Other
Total Surplus Reserve Reserves
2018 $ $ $ $
Balance at beginning of the financial year 294,531,425 86,289,937 207,529,238 712,250
Surplusf{deficit) for the year 856,363 856,363 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/{decrement) (3,370,858) - (3,370,958) -
Transfers lo other reserves - (150,000) - 150,000
Transfers from other reserves (9,282) (6,000) - (3,292)
Balance at end of the financial year 202,007,538 86,990,300 204,158,280 858,958
Accumulated Revaluation Other
Tofal Surplus Reserve Reserves
2017 $ $ $ $
Balance at beginning of the financial year 279,529,284 81,110,407 197,118,477 700,400
Surplus/(defick) for the year . 5,191,380 5,191,380 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/{decrement) 9,810,761 - 9,810,761 -
Transfers to other reserves - (11,850) 11,850
Balance at end of the financial year 294,531,425 86,289,937 207,529,238 712,250

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying nofes,
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018

2018 2017
Inflows/ Inflows/!
{Outflows) {Outflows)
Note $ $
Gash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges 18,406,088 17,974,619
Statutory fees and fines 463,093 389,726
User fees 683,723 724,869
Grants - operating 6,793,808 8,075,151
Grants - capital 3,234,111 3,194,120
Conlributions - monetary 375,105 426,872
Interest received 282,507 284,653
Trust funds and deposits taken 1,867,187 1,271,355
Other receipls 441,479 528,921
Net GST refund 1,977,509 1,646,096
Employee costs {9,073,531) {8,851,740)
Materials and services (14,628,715)  (12,844,955)
Trust funds and deposits repaid (1,325,253) (1,685,651)
Other paymenls {301,654) (686,623)
Net cash provided by/{used in) operating activities 8.2 9,285,458 10,547,413
Cash flows from investing activitles
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 5.2 (10,189,917) (6,607,667)
Proceeds from sale of property, infrastruclure, plant and equipment 28 1,105,718 488,157
Reclassification financial assets as cash 2,200,000 (1,000,000
Net cash provided byl{used in) investing activities (6,884,199) (7,119,510)
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance cosls (54,019) (77,703)
Repayment of borrowings (511,551) {468,073)
Net cash provided byl{used in) financing aclivities (665,570) (565,776)
Net increase (decreass) in cash and cash equivalents 4,835,688 2.862,127
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 12,242,105 9,379,978
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 44(a) 14,077,793 12,242,105

Financing arrangements 46
Resflrictions on cash assets 4.1

The above statement of cash flow should be read In conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Properly

Land

Bulldings

Total property

Plant and equipment

Plant, machinery and equipment
Computers and telecommunications
Total plant and equipment

Infrastructure
Roads

Bridges and culverts
Foolpaths

Drainage

Open space assels
Total infrastruciure

Total capital works expenditure

Represented hy:
New asset expenditure

Asset renewal expenditure
Asset expansion expendifure

Asset upgrade expenditure
Total capital works expenditure

Statement of Capital Works
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018

Note 2018 2017

$ $
- 94,721
707,899 1,017,086
707,889 1,111,807
464,281 324,700
155,205 434,172
619,486 758,872
5,007,585 3,001,228
2,461,137 956,819
311,939 116,689
808,337 505,575
273,633 156,676
8,862,531 4,736,988
10,188,917 6,607,667
660,388 873,658
8,580,986 5,254,681
230,644 113,801
717,899 365,427
10,189,917 6,607,667

The above statement of capital works should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2017/2018 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2018

OVERVIEW

Introduction
The Strathbogie Shire Council was established by an Order of the Governor in Councll on 18 November 1994 and Is a body
corporate.
The Councli's main office Is located at the comer of Binney and Bury Streefs, Euroa, Victoria 3666,

Statement of compliance
These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive Income Statement,
Balance Sheet, Stalement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital Works and Notes
accompanylng these financial statements. The general purpose financial report complies with the Austraifan Accounting
Standards (AAS), other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local
Govemnment Act 1989, and the Local Govemment {Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014,

Significant accounting policies

(a) Basls of accounting
The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial statements, whereby assets, liabllities,
equity, income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is
recelved or paid.

Judgements, eslimales and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assels and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated jJudgements are based on professional judgement
derived from historical experience and various other factors that are beligved to be reasonable under the clrcumstances.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate Is revised and also in future periods
that are affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the applicalion of AAS's that have
significant effects on the financlal statements and estimates relate to:

- the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plantand equipment {refer fo Note 5.2)

- the determination of depreciation for bulldings, infrastructure, plant and equipment {refer o Note 5.2)

- the determination of employee provisions (refer to Note 4.5)

- the determination of landfill provisions (refer to Note 4.5}

Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year. Where appropriale,
comparative figures have been amended to accord with current presentation, and disclosure has been made of any
material changes to comparatives.
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2017/2018 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2018

Note 1 Performance against budget

The performance against budget noles compare Council's financial plan, expressed through its annual budget, with actual performance. The
Local Governmeni (Planning and Reporting) Regulafions 2014 requires explanation of any material variances, Council has adopted a
materiality threshold of the lower of 10 percent or $100,000 where further explanation Is warranted. Explanalions have not been provided for
variations below the materiality threshold unless the variance is considered to be material because of its nature.

The budget figures detalled below are those adopted by Council on 27 June 2017, The Budget was based on assumplions that were relevant
at the time of adoption of the Budget. Councl sels guidelines and parameters for income and expense targels in this budget in order fo meet
Coungil's planning and financiat performance fargets for both the short and long-term. The budget did not reflect any changes to equity
resulling from asset revaluations, as their impacts were not considered predictable.

These noles are prepared to mest the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Govemiment (Planning and Reporting)

Regulations 2014.
1.1 Income and expenditure .
Budget Actual Varlance
2018 ’ 2018 2018
$ $ $ Ref
Income
Rates and charges 18,550,000 18,525,521 (24,479)
Statutory fees and fines 367,000 463,093 96,093 1
User fees 728,000 683,723 (45,217)
Grants - operating 2,833,000 7,030,203 4,197,203 2
Grants - capilal 3,054,000 3,234,111 180,411 3
Contributions - monslary 442,000 375,105 (66,895) 4
Contributions - non monetary - 1,285,840 1,285,840 5
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, Infrastruclure, plant and equipment - 97,362 97,362 6
Other income 677,000 853,311 176,311 7
Total income 26,652,000 32,548,270 5,896,270
Expenses
Employee costs (8,772,000) {9,095,532) (323,532) 8
Materlals and services (11,853,000) (12,102,108) (249,108) 9
Depreciation {5,259,000) {5,802,643) (543,643) 10
Borrowing costs {54,000) (54,019) (19)
Net gain/{loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plantand equipment (141,000} - 141,000 5
Share of net profits/{losses) of associates and joint venlures - (8.514) (8,514)
Other expenses (799,000) (4,629,091) 3,830,091) #
Total expenses (26,878,000) (31,691,807) (4,813,907)
Surplusl{deficit) for the year (226,000) 856,363 1,082,363
() Explanation of material variations
Variance Ref ltem Explanation
4 Statutory fees and fines i Fees from nevdy i d planning/sub-divisfon fee regulations $67K Fees from
Increased building activity $18K
Grants - operating Increased VGC funding $93K, prepaid 2018/19 VGG funding $2.65 miffion,
2 *#iclorian Grants Commission (VGC) unbudgeted Flood funding $1.27 million, unbudgeted grant Friendiies Oval $90K
Granis ~ capilal Unsuccessful budgeted grants applications (3260K), offset by unbudgeted granls
3 forboat ramp $221K, Violel Town mens shed $52K, other minor grants $69K,
greater lhan budgeled Roads lo Recovery grant $97K
4 Contributions - monetary A budgelad coniribution of $00K for Violet Town Oval toifels was notl received
5 Contributions - non monetary Gifted assels $1.15M, found assels $140K. Refer Note 2.5 for delails
: Net gainl{ioss) on disposal of property, infrastructure,  Sales of Council owned land exceeded budget expeclations
plant and equipment
7 Other income !anudgeleq intome froxfl fire prevention infringements $74K, groater than budgeled
investmentinterest raceived $86K
8 Employee cosls Previously provided by contract $218K, funded by new: grants 394K, under-budgeled
$48K, new rescurces lo fund increased aclivity $40K
9 Materals and services Grealer than budgeled legal fees $127K, greater than budgetsd utilities $115K
10 Depreciation I d infr ture dapreciation $456K
Greater than budgeted written dovm value of infraslucture assels replaced 115K
11 Other expenses Increase in Violet Town landfill rehabilitaion provision $3.72 million
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Strathbogie Shire Notes to the Financial Report
2017/2018 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2018

Note 1 Performance against budget {cont'd)

1.2 Capitai works

Budget Actual Varlance
2018 2018 2018
$ $ $  Ref
Properly
Land - - -
Bulldings 1,542,000 707,899 (834,101) 1
Total Property 1,542,000 707,899 (834,101)
Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 984,000 464,281 (619,719) 2
Computers and telecommunications 406,000 155,205 (250,795) 3
Total Plant and Equipment 1,390,000 619,486 (770,514)
Infrastructure :
Roads 6,045,000 5,007,585 (1,037,415) 4
Bridges and culveris 3,443,000 2,461,137 (981,863) 5
Footpaths 303,000 311,939 8,939
Drainage 1,344,000 808,337 (635,663) 6
Open space assels 475,000 273,533 (201,467) 7
Tolal Infrastructure 11,610,000 8,862,531 {2,747,469)
Total Capital Works Expenditure 14,542,000 10,189,917 (4,352,083)
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 1,734,000 660,388 (1,073,612)
Asset renewal expenditure 10,337,000 8,580,986 (1,756,014)
Asset expanslon expenditure 220,000 230,644 10,644
Asset upgrade expenditure 2,251,000 717,899 (1,533,101)
Total Capital Works Expenditure 14,542,000 10,189,917 {4,352,083)
(1) Explanation of material variations
Variance Ref ltem Explanation

Comﬁeﬁon 0 capxla VIOTKS progrems are oilen mpacieﬂ By SUCH 13e101s s Uniavourabie weal B, poor fesponse to @niﬁfs. axiema

funding delays, rescoping of projecis efc.

Arange of these factors have impacted the 2017/18 capilal works program and resulled in delays in the following project areas,
necessilating their defaral to 2018/19.

Buildings Carried forvrard to 2018/18 $752K
2 Plant, machinery and equipmant Carried forward {o 2018/19 §433K
3 Computers and {elecommunications Carried forward o 2018/19 §336K
4 Roads Caied forvard fo 2018/19 $1.74M, unbudgeted flood restoration $1.14M , reseal saving $427K
§ Bridges and culvers Carriad forvard to 2018/19 $870K
3 Dralnage Carried forward to 2018/19 $475K
7 Open space assels Carried forward to 2018/19 $227K
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Strathhogie Shire Notes to the Financial

For the Year Ended 30
2017/2018 Financial Report June 2018
Note 2 Funding for the delivery of our services 2018 2017
2.1 Rates and charges $ $

Council uses capital Improved value (GIV) as the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipal district.
The CIV of a properly is the valuation of the land and all improvements on that fand.

The valuation base used to calculate general rates for 2017/18 was $2.837million (2016/47 $2.805 million).

General Rates 14,339,771 13,810,852
Munlcipal charge 1,785,711 1,768,376
Waste management charge 2,402,955 2,287,353
Special rates and charges (2,917) 199,998
Total rates and charges 18,525,521 18,066,579

The date of the lalest general revaluation of fand for rating purposes within the municipal district was 1 January
2018, and the valuation will be first applied in the rating year commencing 1 July 2018,

Annual rates and charges are recognised as revenues when Council issues annual rates notices. Supplementary
rates are recognised when a valuation and reassessment is completed and a supplementary rates notice Issued.

2.2 Statutory fees and fines

Building fees 56,172 45,779
Planning fees 234,219 167,346
Health registrations 70,088 66,679
Animal regisirations 81,122 83,433
Land information cerdificates 20,889 21,470
Boating infringements 543 5,019
Total statutory fees and fines 463,093 389,726

Statutory fees and fines are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided, the paymentis received,
orwhen fhe penalty has been applied, whichever first occurs.

2.3 User fees

Tip fees 129,909 100,005
Nagambie Lakes evenls 42,723 17,087
Saleyard opsrations revenue 244,958 248,877
Swimming pools revenue 5529 5,234
Fire Service Levy - financial support 41,315 40,128
Rentfiease Charges 40,072 50,795
Private works 1,180 2,380
Euroa Cinema 63,750 56,196
Debt collection expenses recovered 62,656 90,316
Septic tank fees 19,346 15,940
Other user charges and coniributions 62,285 73,138
Total user fees 683,723 700,096

User fees are recognised as revenue when the senvice has been provided or council has otherwise eamed the Income.

2.4 Funding from other levels of government
Granls were received in respect of the following :

Summary of grants

Commonwealth funded grants 7,404,930 9,937,254
State funded grants 2,859,384 1,296,947
Total grants received 10,264,314 11,234,201
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Strathhogie Shire

2017/2018 Financial Report

Notes to the Financial
For the Year Ended 30
June 2018

{a) Operating Grants

Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Financlal Assistance Grants

Senior Citizens Grants

Commonwealth Roads of Access
Recutrent - Stafe Government

Aged Care

Matemal & Child Health

Youth

Community Safely

Median Strip Subsidy

Pests and Plants Program

Municipal Emergency Resource Programme
Nagambie Tourlsm Infrastructure

Engage Youth

Supported Playgroup

Recycling

Tofal recurrent operating grants

Non-recurrent - State Government
Recreation

Flood Event 1212017

Vic Health Walk To School

Total non-recurrent operating grants

Total operating grants

(b) Capital Grants

Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Roads fo recovery
Total recurrent capital grants

Non-recurrent - State Government
Roads and Bridges

Bulldings

Recreation

Footpaths

Waste Transfer Station Upgrades
Euroa Flood Levee

Total non-recurrent capital grants

Toftal capital grants

(c) Unspent grants recelved on condition that they be spent in a specific manner

Balance at start of year
Recelved during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year

Balance at year end

Grant Income Is recognised when Council obtains control of the contribution, Controlis normally obtained upon

receipt (or acquittal) or upon earlier notification that a grant has been secured,

Page 10

5,191,909 7,506,006
20,086 19,729
44,100 40,303

0 31,810
128,561 112,516
55,000 55,000
34,044 19,339
7,000 7,000
53,364 53,378
60,000 60,000
0 45,000
18,333 0
41,250 0
13,800 0
5,664,535 7,950,081
2018 2017

$ $
90,000 80,000

1,265,668 0
10,000 0

1,365,668 90,000

7,030,203 8,040,081

2,151,745 2,371,216

7,151,745 2,371,216

609,000 307,377
222,270 253,000
221,096 17,600
20,000 75,000
0 50,027
10,000 120,000
1,082,366 822,904
3,341 3,194,120
- 354,018
399,69 -
- {354,018)
399,69 -




Strathbogie Shire Notes to the Financial

For the Year Ended 30
2017/2018 Financial Report June 2018
2.5 Contributions

Monetary 375,105 426,872

Non-monetary 1,285,840 562,892

Total contributions 1,660,945 989,764

Conlributions of non monefary assels were received in relafion fo the following assef classes.

Buildings - 317,000

Roads 223,935

Land under roads 108,266

Footpaths 230,600

Kerb & channel 98,580

Dralnage 624,459 245,892
1,285,840 562,892

Total non-monetary contributions
Moneary and non monetary contiibutions are recognised as revenue when Councll oblains control over the coniributed assel.

2.6 Net galn/{loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Proceeds of sale 1,105,718 488,157
Writien down value of assets disposed {1,008,356) {652,623)
Total net gainf(loss) on disposal of property, Infrastructure, plant and equipment 97,362 (164,466)

The profit or loss on sale of an asset Is determined when contro! of the asset has passed to the buyer.

2018 2017
$ $
2,7 Other income
Interest 282,507 289,147
Interest on rates 95,685 88,960
Diesel rebate 60,158 43,113
Insurance recoveries 122,756 164,065
Regional Shared Services 400,000 100,000
Parental Leave Relmbursement 31,945 8,004
Green Organics 74,713 91,448
Fire Prevention Notice Infringements 74,336 3,133
Other items 11,211 19,614
Total other income 853,311 813,574
Interest is recognised as it is earned.
Other income Is measured at the falr value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised when
Councll gains confrol over the right to receive the income.
Note 3 The cost of delivering services
3.1 Employee cosfs

Wages and salaries 7,943,310 7,882,260
WorkCover 165,815 140,691
Superannuafion 722,884 678,538
Fringe benefits {ax 139,189 173,520
Other 124,234 106,761

9,095,532 8,981,770

Total employee costs -

(b) Superannuation
Council made contributions to the following funds:

Defined benefit fund
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super) 71,993 79,528

74,993 79,526

Employer contributions payable a reporting date. . .
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Strathbogie Shire Notes fo the Financial

For the Year Ended 30
2017/2018 Financial Report June 2018
Accumulation funds
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vislon Super) 376,892 375,143
Employer contributions - other funds 261,014 203,778
637,906 578,921
Employer confributions payable at reporting date. - N
Refer to note 8.3 for further information relaling to Counclf's superannuation obligations.
3.2 Materials and services
Building & Infrastructure Maintenance 3,434,942 3,470,163
Wasle Management 2,034,337 1,947,271
Consulfancles & Other Contractors 1,318,476 1,650,749
Operating Expenses- Plant 1,011,215 744,349
Community Expenses 753,872 739,407
Contractors- Labour Hire 809,784 637,725
Information Syslems & Communicalions 681,838 529,996
Other Expenses 286,570 431,669
Materlals and Services 674,223 323,860
Utilities 415,617 355,033
Insurances 345,687 312,326
Printing, Staticnery & Postage 152,328 209,344
Legal Fees 183,219 92,753
Total malerials and services 12,102,108 11,444,645
3.3 Depreciation
Property 853,471 868,928
Plantand equipment 500,928 523,758
Fumiture and Equipment 193,104 249,191
Infrastruclure 4,255,141 3,705,197
Total depreciation 5,802,643 5,347,074
Refer fo nole 5.2 for a more delailed breakdown of depreciation charges and accounting policy.
2018 2017
$ $
3.4 Bad and doubtful debts
Movement in provisions for doubtful debts
Balance at the beginning of the year {7,025) (7,025)
Balance at end of year (7,025) {7,025)

Provision for doubtful debt is recognised when there Is objective evidence that an Impairment loss has occurred.
Bad debls are written off when Identified.
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Strathbogle Shire Notes fo the Financial

For the Year Ended 30
2017/2018 Financlal Report June 2018
3.5 Borrowing costs
Interest - Borrowings 54,019 17,703
Total borrowing costs 54,019 77,703

Bomowing cosls are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except where they are
capitalised as part of a qualifying asset constructed by Council.

3.6 Other expenses

Auditors' remuneration - VAGO - audit of the financlal statements, performance statement and grant acquitals 44,900 39,000
Auditors' remuneration - Internal 41,630 46,201
Councillors' allowances 180,341 159,982
Other Councillor expenses 28,595 41,440
WDV of Infrastructure Assets Renewed** 615,521 403,260
Violet Town Landfill Provision 3,718,104 -
Donation® - 300,000
Total other expenses 4,629,091 989,883

* During 2016/17 Counclt made a donation of $300,000 to Euroa Hospital to purchase medical equipment.
* The residual value of renewed infrastructure assets at the time of thelr renewal

Note 4 Our financial position
4.1 Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 4,563 4,213
Cash at bank 1,873,230 2,231,974
Term deposils 12,200,000 10,005,918
Total cash and cash equivalents 14,077,793 12,242,105

(h) Other financial assets

Current

Term deposifs - cutrent - 2,200,000
Total Current other financial assets - 2,200,000
Non-Current

Share in MAV Purchasing Scheme 2,032 2,032
Total Non-Gurrent other financial assets 2,032 2,032
Total Other financial assets 2,032 2,202,032
Total financial assets 14,079,825 14,444,137

Councils cash and cash equivalents are subject fo extemal restrictions that limit
amounls available for discrelionary use. Thesa include:

- Trust funds and depostis (Note 4.3) 893,656 352,438
Total restricted funds 893,656 352,439
Total unrestricled cash and cash equivalents 13,184,137 11,889,666

Intended allocations
Although not externally restricted the following amounts have been aliocated for speclfic future purposes by Councit:

- Cash held to fund carried forward capital works 4,521,000 4,194,000
- Open space reseve 108,958 112,250
- Bridge replacement reserve 750,000 600,000
Total funds subject to infended allocations 5,379,958 4,906,250

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and other highly liquid investments with original
maturities of 90 days or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafis.

Other financial assels are valued at falr value, at balance dale. Term deposils are measured at original cost. Any
unrealised gains and losses on holdings at balance dale are recognised as eilher a revenue of expense.
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Strathbogie Shire Notes to the Financial Report
2017/2018 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2018

(c) Trade and other receivables 2018 2017
$ $
Current
Stalulory receivables
Rales deblors 1,173,549 1,091,488
Special rate assessment 6,096 49,706
Net GST Receivable 346,385 327,361
Non statutory receivables
Other deblors 666,047 293,300
Provision for doubtful debts - other debtors (7,026} (7,025)
Total current trade and other receivables 2,185,052 1,754,830

Non-current

Slalutory receivables
Special rate scheme 48,771 64,815
Total non-current trade and other receivables 48,771 64,815
Total trade and other recelvables 2,233,823 1,819,645

Short term receivables are carred at invoice amount. A provision for doubtful debts is recognised
when there Is objective evidence that an impairment has occurred. Long term receivables are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

(a) Agelng of Recelvables

The ageing of the Councll's trade & other receivables (excluding statutary receivables) that are not impaired was:

Current (not yet due) 524,638 228,573
Past due by up to 30 days 17,366 8,599
Past due between 31 and 180 days 124,043 77,886

Past due between 181 and 365 days - -
Past due by more than 1 year - -

Total frade & other receivables 666,047 315,058
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Strathbogle Shire Notes to the Financial Report
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4.2 Non-financial assets 2018 2017
$ $
Other assets
Prepayments 330,874 201,786
Accrued income 173,969 112,522
Inventories 6,216 7,848
Total other assets 511,059 322,156

Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost, adjusted when appicable for any loss of service potential. All other inventories, including land held for
sale, are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Where inventories are acquired for no cost or nominal consideration, they are measured at
current replacement cost at the date of acquisition.

4.3 Payables
(a) Trade and other payables
Trade payables 2,523,290 2,804,275
Accrued expenses 283,288 317,018
Total frade and other payables 2,806,578 3,121,293

(b} Trust funds and deposits

Current

Refundable deposiis 10,650 12,077

Flre services levy 444,231 10,900

Retention amounts 191,650 132,230 -
Funds held on behalf of other organisations 247,125 197,232

Total Current trust funds and deposits 893,656 352,439

Non-Current

Trust funds bequested 64,203 63,486

Total Nen-Current trust funds and deposits 64,203 63,486

Total trust funds and deposits

957,859 415,925

Amounis recelved as deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as trust funds until they are returned, transferred in accordance
with the purpose of the receipt, or forfeited. Trust funds that are forfeited, resulting in council gaining contro! of the funds, are fo be recognised as revenue at
the fime of forfelt.

Purpose and natire of ilems

Refundable deposits - Deposils are taken by council as a form of surely in a number of circumstances, including In refation fo building works, tender deposts,
contract deposits and the use of civic facifities.

Fire Servica Levy - Council is the collection agent for fire services levy on behalf of the State Government. Council remits amounts received on a quarterly
basis. Amounts disclosed here will be remitted to the state government in fine with that process.

Retention Amotmis - Council has a contraclual right o retain certain amounts until a contractor has met cerfain requirements or a related warrant or defect
period has elapsed. Subject to the satisfactory completion of the contractual obligations, or the elapsing of time, these amounts will be paid to the relevant
contraclor in line with Councif's contraciual obligations.

Funds held on behalf of other organisations - Amounts held in trust by Council for other organisations.To be expended in accordance with the directions of

the organisation.
4.4 Interest-hearing liabilities 2018 2017
$ $
Current
Borrowings - secured 185,720 511,551

185,720 511,551

Non-current

Borrowings - secured 504,914 690,634
504,914 690,634
Totat 690,634 1,202,185
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Borrowings are secured by securities on the rates of Councll

The maturity profile for Counclf's borrowings Is:

Not fater than one year 185,720 511,551
Later than one year and not later than five years 504,914 690,634
Later than five years - -

690,634 1,202,185

Borrowings are initially measured at fafr value, being the cost of the Interest bearing liabiities, net of fransaction costs. The measurement basis subsequent
to inltial recognition depends on whether the Council has categorised its interest-bearing Hlabilities as either financial liabilities designated at fair value through
the profit and loss, or financial liabilities at amortised cost. Any difference between the Initial recognised amount and the redemption value is recognised in
nel result over the period of the borrowing using the effective Interest method.

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the interest bearing liabilities. The Council determines the classification of its Interest bearing
llabilities at initial recognition,

4.5 Provisions

Employee Landfill Total
restoration
2018 $ $ $
Balance at beginning of the financial year 2,544,253 1,778,738 4,322,994
Additional provisions 711,861 3,718,103 4,429,964
Amounts used (721,389) - (721,389)
Change in the discounted amount arising because of {ime and the effect of
any change In the discount rate 3,340 - 3,340
Balance at the end of the financlal year 2,538,065 5,496,841 8,034,906
2017
Balance at beginning of the financlal year 2,536,899 1,656,062 4,192,961
Additional provisions 786,349 122,676 909,025
Amounts used {778,995) - (778,995)
Change in the discounted amount arising because of ime and the effect of
any chanae In the discount rate Z ~ _
Balance at the end of the financlal year 2,544,253 1,778,738 4,322,991
(a) Employee provisions 2018 2017
$ $
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 months
Annual leave 589,217 608,831
Long service leave 132,171 279,533
Other 31,444 20,099

752,832 908,463

The current provisions expected to be wholly settied within 12 months for annual leave and long service leave are based on the 2017/18 aclual payments of
annual and long service leave.

Currant provisions expected to he wholly settled after 12 months

Annual leave 398,787 375,973
Long service leave 1,186,687 1,083,194
1585474 1,459,167
Total current employee provisions 2,338,305 2,367,630
Non-current
Long service leave 199,760 176,623
Total non-current employee provisions 199,760 176,623
Aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions:
Current 2,338,305 2,367,630
Non-current 199,760 176,623
Tolal aggregate carrylng amount of employee provisions 2,538,065 2,544,253

The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are calculated as follows at reporting date.

Wages and salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulated sick leave expected o be wholly setlled within 12 months
of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for employee benefits in respect of employee services up to the reporting date, classified as current
liabiliies and meastred at thelr nominal values.

Liabilllies that are not expected to be wholly seftled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for employee benefits as current
liabililies, measured at the present value of the amounts expected lo be pald when the Hlabllities are setiled using the remuneration rate expected fo apply at
the time of setflement.
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Long service leave

Liabiliy for long service leave (LSL) Is recognised In the provision for employee benefits, LSL is measured at present value. Unconditional LSL is disclosed
as a current liabllity. Conditional LSL that has been accrued, where an employee s yet o reach a quafifying term of employment, is disclosed as a non -

cunent liability.

Key assumptions:

- discount rate - welghled average 2.32% 2.22%

- inflatlon rate 2.15% 2.15%
2018 2017

(b) Landfill restoration $ $

Current - 796,908

Non-current 5,496,842 981,830

5496,842 1,778,738

Counail is obligated to restore the Violet Town landfill site fo a particular standard. The work required to reslore the site fo an acceplable standard has
recenlly besn reassessed by Council's landfill consultant, Meinhardt Group in consultation with the EPA. Three rehabilltation options and their respective
cost estimates have been prepared. At the time of preparing these stalements, Councl has yet fo consider and determine its prefermed capping option,
however, the landfill rehabilitation provision has been increased In accordance with the most likely option.

Refer to Note 7.1, Contingent Liabillities for further information.

4.7 Commitments

Key assumplions:

- discount rate - weighted average 2.32% 2.22%

-inflation rate 3.00% 3.00%

- estimated cost to rehabilitate $ 796,908 $ 796,908
4.6 Financing arrangements

The Council has the following funding arrangements in place as at 30 June 2018,

Bank overdraft 1,445,000 1,145,000

Loan faclliies 680,634 1,200,000

Lease facllities 500,000 500,000

Credit card facllities 100,000 100,000

Total facllities 2435634 2,945,000

Used faclliles (784,284)  {1,194,372)

Unused faciliies 1,651,350 1,750,628

The Councll has entered info the following commitments. Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Sheet. Gommitments are disclosed at their

nominal value and presented inclusive of the GST payable.

2018

Operating

Regycling

Garbage collection

Open space management
Planning

Govemnance

Human Resources

Flood Damage

Total

Capital
Bridges
Roads
Plant
Total

Later than 1

yearand not Later than 2 years

Not laterthan laterthan2 and nol later than Laterthan 5
1year years 5years years Total
$ $ $ $ $
1,287,461 1,393,784 4284,384 1,542,791  8,505420
517,413 539,923 1,762,980 638,271 3,458,587
455,283 467404 157,773 1,080,459
120,436 120,436
273,362 129,613 121,136 524,111
12,408 12,408
6,097,152 6,097,152
8,763516 2,530,723 6,323,274 2,181,061 19,788,574
1,013,954 - - - 1,013,954
476,611 - - - 476,611
984,809 - - - 984,809
2475374 - - - 2475374

Page 17



Strathhogie Shire Notes to the Financial Report
2017/2018 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June

Later than 1
yearand not Later than 2 years
Not later than laterthan2 and not later than Later than 5

2017 1year years Syears years Total
$ $ $ $ $
Operating
Recyceling 1,219,230 1,268,061 4,116,716 3,026,243 9,630,310
Garbage collection 495,676 517,413 1,690,627 1,250,646 3,954,262
Open space management 116,094 - - - 116,094
Cleaning confracts for council buildings 2,338 - - - 2,338
Total 1,833,398 1785474 5807243 4,276,889 13,703,004
Capital
Buildings 185,570 - - - 185,570
Roads 1,004,416 - - - 1,004,416
Drainage 84,562 - - - 84,562
Total 1,274,548 - - - 1,274,548
2018 2017
Operating lease commitments $ $

Atthe reporting date, the Council had the following obligations under non-cancellable operating leases for the lease of equipment and land and bulldings for
use within Councll's activities (these obligations are not recognised as llabilties):

Not tater than one year . 140,444 87,119
Later than one year and not later than five years 421,556 214,946
Later than five years 33,741 -

585,741 302,065

Lease payments for operating leases are required by the accounting standard to be recognised on a siraight line bass, rather than expensed in the years in
which they are Incurred,

Note 5 Assets we manage

5.1 Non current assefs classlfied as held for sale

Cost of acquisition 718,400 926,800 *
Total non current assets classified as held for sale 718,400 926,800

Non-current assels classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of thelr carying amount and fair value less costs of disposal, and are not subject to
depreciation. Non-current assets are {realed as current and classified as held for sale if their canying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continting use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset's sale Is expected {o be completed

within 12 months from the date of classification.

* Non-current assets classified as held for resale as at 30 June 2017 included 2 properties, being lots 3 and 4 Carrick Cres., Nagambie, which Council has
subsequently determined to retain for municipal purposes.

The non-current assets held for resale are 4 allolments in Carrick Cres., Nagambie and units 1-5, 10 Jean Street, Longwood.

The sale of the Carrick Cres., Nagamble properties was approved by Council at its meefing of 18 March 2014, The sale of the Jean Strest, Longwood
property was approved by Council at its meeting of 20 May 2014. Sales of all properties are either under contract or being actively marketed.
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Strathhogle Shire Notes to the
2017/2018 Financial Report For the Year Ended

Acquisition

The purchase mathod of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the falr value of assels provided as consideration at the date
of acquisition plus any incidental costs attributable fo the acquisifion. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset (or pald
to transfer a liability) In an orderly transaction between market pariicipants at the measurement date.

Where assels are constructed by Councll, cost includes all materials used in construction, direct labour, borrowing cosls incurred during
construction, and an appropriate share of direclly attributable variable and fixed overheads.

In accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limits have applied when recognising assels within an applicable assef class and unless
otherwise stated are consistent with the prior year.

Land under roads
Council recognises land under roads it controls at fair value after 30 June 2008.

Depreciation and amortisalion

Buildings, land improvemenis, plant and equipment, infrastruciure, and other assels having limited useful lives are systematically
depreciated over their useful lives to the Council in a manner which reflects consumption of the service polential embodied in those assets.
Estimates of remaining useful lives and residual values are made on a regular basis with major asset classes reassessed annually.
Depreciation rates and methods are reviewed annually,

Where assels have separate identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are assigned distinet
useful lives and residual values and a separale depreclalion rale s determined for each component.

Road earthworks are not depreciated on the basis that they are assessed as nol having a limited useful fife.
Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful fife as delermined each year.
Depreciation periods used are listed below and are consistent with the prior year unless othenwise stated.

Repairs and mainfenance
Where the repair relates to the replacement of a componant of an asset and the cost exceeds the capialisation threshold the costis
capifailsed and depreciated. The carrying value of the replaced asset is expensed.

Valuation of land and buildings

Valuation of land and buildings were undertaken by a qualified Independent valuer John Dixon, of FG Dixon Group on 30 June 2016, The
valuation of fand and bulldings is at fair value, belng market value based on highest and best use permitted by relevant land planning
provisions. Where land use is restricted through existing planning provisions the vaiuation is reduced to reflect this limitation. This
adjustment is an unobsetvable input In the valuation. The adjusiment has no impact on the comprehensive income stalement.

Speclalised land is valued at fair valiie using slte values adjusted for englobo (undeveloped and/or unserviced) characteristics, access rights
and private interests of other parties and entilaments of infrastructure assets and services, This adjustment is an unobsevable input in the
valuation. The adjustment has no Impact on the comprehensive income statement,

Any significant movements In the unobservable inputs for tand and land under roads will have a significant impact on the fair value of these

assels,

The date of the current valuation is detalled in the following table.

Detalls of the Counclf's land and bulldings and information about the fair value hlerarchy as at 30 June 2018 are as follows:

Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Date of Valuation
$'000 $'000 $'000
Land - 5,420 - Jun-16
Specialised land - - 23,921 Jun-16
Land under roads - - 670 Jun-16
Bulfdings - 2,015 - Jun-16
Total - 7435 24,591
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Notes to the
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Valuafion of infrastructure

The valuation Is at fair value based on replacement cost less accumulated depreciation as at the date of valuation. Valuation of
infrastructure assels at 30 June 2018 was made by Uwe Paffarth, Cerlified Municipal Engineer.

Roads

Bridges

Footpaths and cycleways

Drainage

Kerb & channel

Parks, open space and sireetscapes
Other infrastructure

Tolal

Level 4 Level2 Level3  Date of Valuation
000 $'000 $000
N - 134,095 Jun-18
- - 50,118 Jun-18
- - 3,200 Jun-18
. - 10,699 Jun-18
- - 4,092 Jun-18
N - 3,106 Jun-18
- - 584 Jun-18
- - 205,895

Description of significant unobservable inpuls into level 3 valuations

Specialised fand and land under roaas Is valued using a market based direct comparison techique. Signiticant unobservable inputs
include the extent and Impact of restriction of use and the market cost of fand per square mefre. The extent and Impact of restictions on
uise varies and resulis in a reduction to surrounding fand values between 85% and 95%. The market value of land varies significantly
depending on the location of the land and the current market conditions. Currently land values range between $0.48 and $565 per square

metre.

Specialised buildings are valued using a deprecialed replacement cost lechnique. Significant unobservable inputs Include the curent
replacement cost and remaining useful lives of bulldings. Current replacement cosls is calculated on a square melre basis and ranges from
$200 to $7,000 per square melre. The remaining useful ives of bulldings are determined on the basls of the current condition of buildings
and vary from 20 years to 120 years. Replacement cost is sensilive lo changes in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost
Tlowing through to the valualion, Useful lives of buildings are sensitive fo changes in expeclations or requirements that could either shorten

or extend the useful fives of buildings.

Infrastructure assets are valued based on the depreciated replacement cost. Significant unobservable inputs include the current
replacement cost and remaining useful fives of infrastructure. The remaining useful lives of infrastruclure assets are determined on the
basis of the current condition of the asset and vary from 18 years fo 120 years. Replacement costis sensitive to changes in market
condilions, wilh any Increase or decrease In cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful lives of infrastructure are sensitive to changes in
use, expectations or requirements that could either shorten or extend the useful lives of infrastructure assets.

Reconciliation of specialised fand
Parks and reserves

Waste management

Civic cenires

Coungil depis

Caravan parks

Pre schools

Saleyards

Total specialised {and

2018 2017
$ $
17,650,764 17,352,965
853,801 853,801
2,230,707 2,230,707
613,849 613,849
1,800,420 1,900,420
364,000 364,000
308,321 308,321
23,921,862 23,624,063
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Notes to the

Strathbogie Shire Financial Report
For the Year
2017/2018 Financial Report Ended 30 June
5.3 Investments In assoclates 2018 2017
$ $
Investments in associates accounted for by the equity method
are:
Goulbum Valley Reglonal Library Corporation 235987 - 244,501

The Goulburn Valley Regionat Library Corporation was formed under the provisions of section 196 of the Local Government Act 1989 on 15/09/2009
to provide library services within the local government area of Strathbogie Shire, Moira Shire and Cily of Grealer Shepparton, Council holds 9.89%
(2015 9.89%) of equify in the Comporation.Counci! has two directors on the board of nine. Councit has the ability to influence rather than controt its
operations.

Falr value of Councll's investment In Goulburn Valley 235,987 244,501

Councll's share of accumulated surplus/(deficit)

Councif's share of accumulated surplus{deficit) at start of year 244,501 241,520
Reported surplus{deficit) for year {8,514) 2,981
Transfers (o) from reserves - -
Distributions for the year - -
Councif's share of accumulated surplus(deficit) at end of year 235,887 244,501
Movement in carrying value of specific investment

Carrying value of investment at start of year 244,501 241,520
Share of surplus(deficit) for year (8,514) 2,984
Share of asset revaluation - -
Distributions received - -
Carrying value of investment at end of year 235,987 244,501

Associates are all entities over which Council has significant influence but not contro! or joint control. Investments in assoclates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

Investments in joint arrangements are classifled as either joint operalions or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and obligations each
investor has, rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement,

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method, Under this method, the Interests are initially recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise Council's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income in profit or loss and other comprehensive income respectively.

Committess of management
The value of fand and bulldings occupied andfor utilised by Council commitiees of management is consolidated in Counclf's balance sheet as at 30
June 2018.

The following commitiees of management as at 30 June 2018 are not included in this financial report as they are not controlled by Council and
accordingly prepare thelr own financial reporis seperately:
Avenel Memorial Hall
Boha South Hall
Creighton's Creek Recreation Reserve
Euroa Band Hall
Euroa Friendlies Reserve
Euroa Third Age Club
Gooram Soldiers' Memorial Hall
Honouring Our Heroes
Longwood Community Centre
Miepoll Public Hall
Moglonemby Hall
Nagamble Recreation Reserve
Nagambie Waterways Recreational and Commercial Stakeholders Advisory Commitiee
Ruffy Recreation Reserve
Shadforth Reserve
Strathbogle Memorial Hall
Strathbogle Recreation Reserve
Tableland Community Centre Committee Ruffy
Violet Town Complex
Violet Town Recreation Reserve
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Note 6 People and relationships

6.4 Council and key management remuneration

(a) Related Parties

Parent entity
Strathbogie Council Is the parent enity.

Subsidiaries and Associales
Interests in subsidiaries and assoclates are detailed in Note 5.3,

(b) Key Management Personnel

Details of persons holding the postion of Goundillor or other members of key management personne! at any fime during the year are:

Counchllors Amanda McClaren (Mayor)
Malcolm Lillle
John Mason
Kate Stothers
Debra Bower
Alistalr Thomson
Graeme (Mick) Willams

2018 2017
No. No.
Total Number of Councillors 7 11
Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel 4 4
Total Key Management Personnel 11 15
(c) Remuneration of Key Management Personnel 2018 2017
$ $
Total remuneration of key management personnef was as follows:
Short-term benefits 883,325 872,803
Post employment benefits 66,704 66,283
Other long-term benefits 16,297 16,113
Termination benefits - -
Total 966,326 955,199
The numbers of key management personnel whose total remuneration from Gounclt and
any related entities, fall within the following bands: 2018 2017
No. No.
$1-$9,999 . 3
$10,000 - $19,999 - 4
$20,000 - $29,999 [ 3
$30,000 - $39,998 - 1
$60,000 - $69,999 1 -
$160,000 - $169,999 1 1
$180,000 - $189,999 2 2
$220,000 - $229,999 - 1
$230,000 - $239,999 1 -
Kkl 15
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A Senior Officer is an officer of Council,other than Key Management Personnel, who:
a) has management responsibilities and reports directly to the Chief Execulive; or
b) whose tofal annual remuneration exceeds $145,000

The number of Senlor Officers are shown below In their relevant income bands:

2018 2017

Income Range: No. No.
$142,000 - $149,999 - 1
$150,000 - $159,999 1 1
1 2

2018 2017

$ $

Total Remuneration for the reporting year for Senlor Officers included above, amounted to 154,783 305,595

6.2 Related party disclosure
(a) Transactions with related partles

During the period Council did not enter into any transactions with related parlies that require disclosure.

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties
There are no batances outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties that require disclosure.

(c} Loans tolfrom related parties
There are no loans In existence at balance date that have been made, guaranteed or secured by the council to a related party.

{d) Commitments to/from refated parties
There are no commitments in existence at balance date that have been made, guaranteed or secured by the Councli to a related party.

Page 28
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Note 7 Managing uncerfainties
7.1 Contingent assets and liabllities
{a) Contingent assefs

Flood event December 2017

Amajor flood event in December 2017 has resulted in a natural disaster claim for infrastructure restoration works estimated at $5.5 million. At the date of reporting, $1
million of the funding has been recelved, There Is consequently a $4.5 million contingent asset in relation to the balance of the claim. The funds il be claimed
progressively as the restoralion works are completed.

(b) Contingent liabilities

Superannuation
Council has obligations under a defined benafit superannuation scheme that may result in the need to make additional contributions to the scheme, malters relating fo this

polential obligation are outlined below. As a result of the volatility in financlal markets the likelihood of making such contiibutions In future periods exists.

Fulure superannuation confribufions
Strathbogie Shire Council made no unfunded fiability payments to Vision Super during the 2017118 year (2016/17 $0). No conlributions are expected to be paid to the
Defined Benefit category of Vision Super for the year ending 30 June 2018.

Conlingent assets and contingent liabiliies are not recognised In the Balance Shest, but are disclosed and if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets
and liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable, respectively.

{c) Bank Guarantees

Council has 2 outstanding bank guarantees In favour of Goulburm Valley Water in relation to the construction of sewerage infrasiructure in Graham Street, Euroa {$11,400)
and Drysdale Road, Euroa ($10,253).

Financial guarantee contracls are not recognised as a liability in the balance sheet unless the lender has exercised iheir sight to call on the guarantee or Council has other
reasons lo belleve that it is probable that the right will be exercised.

7.2 Change in accounting standards
The following new AAS's have been Issued that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2018 reporting period. Council has assessed these pending standards and has idenlified
the following potential impacts will flow from the application of these standards in future reporting periods.

Financlal Instruments - Disclosures (AASB 7) (applies 2018/19)

This Standard requires entities to provide disclosures in thelr financlal statements that enable users to evaluate: (a) the significance of financial instruments for the entity’s financial
posttion and performance; and (b) the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments to which the entity is exposed.

Financial Instruments (AASB 9) (applies 2018/15)

The key changes include (he simplified requirements for the classfication and measurement of financial assels, a new hedging accounting model and a revised impairment loss
mode! to recognise impairment losses earfier, as opposed to the current approach that recognises impainment only when incurred.

Revenue from confracls wilth cusfomers (AASB 15) (applies 2019/20 for LG sector)

The standard shifts the focus from the Iransaction-level to a contract-based approach. Recognition s determined based on what the customer expects lo be entiled lo (rights and
obligations), while measurement encompasses estimation by the enlty of the amount expected to be entitled for performing under the contract. The full impact of this standard is
notknown however it is most likely to Impact where contracts extend over ime, where there are rights and obligations that may vary the timing or amount of the consideration, or
where there are multiple performance elements. This has the potential to impact on the recognition of certaln grant income.

Amendments fo Austrafian Accaunting Standards — Deferral of AASB 15 for Not-for-Profit Enlities (AASB 2016-7} (applies 2019/20)

This Standard defers the mandatory effective date of AASB 15 for not-for-profit entifies from 1 January 2018 to 1 January 2019.

Leases (AASB 16) (applies 2019/20)

The classificalion of leases as either finance leases or operaling leases s eliminated for lessees. Leases will be recognised in the Balance Sheet by capitalising the present value of
{he minimum lease payments and shoving a 'right-of-use’ asset, while fulure lease payments will be recognised as a financial llability. The nature of the expense recognised in the
profit or loss will change. Rather than belng shown as rent, or as leasing costs, it will be recognised as depreciation on the right-of-use’ asset, and an interest charge on the lease
liability. The interest charge will be calculated using the effective interest methiod, which will result in a gradual reduction of interest expense over the lease term.

Income of Not-for-Profit Enfifles {AASB 1058 ) {applies 2019/20)
This standard replaces AASB 1004 Contributions and establishes revenue recognition principles for iransactions where the consideration to acquire an assetis significantly less
than fair value to enable to notfor-profit entity to furiher its objectives.
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7.3 Financial instruments

{a) Objectives and policles

The Council's principal financial instruments comprise cash assets, tesm deposits, receivables {excluding stafufory receivables), payables (excluding stalutory payables) and
bank borrowings. Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which
income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial assel, financial liability and equity instrument is disclosed in the Notes of the financial statements.
Risk management is carried out by senior management under policies approved by the Council. These policies include identification and analysis of the risk exposure fo
Councll and appropriate procedures, conltrols and risk minimisation.

(b) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of council financial Instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The Councll's exposure to
market risk is primarily through interest rate risk with only Insignificant exposure to other price risks and no exposure to foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers fo the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.
Council's interest rate fiabliity risk arises primarily from long term loans and borrowings at fixed rates which exposes councl! to fair value interest rate risk / Council does not
hold any interest bearing financial instruments that are measured at fair value, and therefore has no exposure to fair value interest rale risk. Cash flow interest rate risk is
the 1isk thal the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Council has minimal exposure to cash flow interest rale

Investment of surplus funds Is made with approved financial Institutions under the Local Government Act 1989 . Counclf manages inlerest rale risk by adopting an
investment polcy that ensures:

- diversification of investment product;

- manitoring of return on invesiment; and

- benchmarking of retums and comparison with budget.

There has been no significant change in the Council's exposure, or its objectives, policles and processes for managing Interest rate risk or the methods used to measure this
risk from the previous reporting period.

Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to have an impact on the Council's year end result.

{c) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument and cause Council to make a financial loss. Council have exposure
to crodit risk on some financial assels Included In the balance shest. To help manage this risk:

- council has a policy for establishing credit limits for the entities Council deals with;

- councll may require collateral where appropriate; and

- council only Invests surplus funds with financial institutions which have a recognised credit rating specified in council's investment policy.

Receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across the ralepayer, business and government seclors. Credit risk associated with the Council's financial
assets Is minimal because the main debtor Is secured by a charge over the raleable property.

There are no materlal financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired.
Council may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not Included in the balance shest, such as when Council provide a guarantee for another parly. Details
of our contingent liablities are disclosed in Note 7.1(b).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to recagnised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for impairment of those assels, as
disclosed in {he balance sheet and notes to the financial statements. Council does not hold any collateral.
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(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of councif's operational liquidity requirements it will not have sufficient funds to seffle a transaction when
required or will be forced lo sell a financial asset at below value or may be unable to sefile or recover a financial asset.

To help reduce these risks Council:

- targets a minimum and average leve! of cash and cash equivalents to be maintained in fts Strategic Resource Plan

- has readily accessible standby facifilies and other funding arrangements in place;

- has an investment policy that requires surplus funds to be invested within various bands of liquid instruments;

- monitors budget to actual performance on a regular basis; and

- sels limils on borrowings relating to the percentage of foans fo rale revenue and percentage of loan principal repayments to rate revenue.

The Council's maximum exposure to liquidity risk Is the carrying amounts of financlal liabilities as disclosed on the face of the balance sheetand the
amounts related to financial guarantees disclosed in Note 7.1(c), and is deemed insignificant based on prior periods’ data and current assessment of
risk.

There has been no significant change in Councif's exposure, o [is objectives, policies and processes for managing liquidity risk or the methods used to
measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

With the exception of bomowings, all financiat liabiliies are expected {o be sefiled within normal terms of trade. Details of the maturty profile for
borrowings are disclosed at Note 4.4.

Unless othemwise stated, the carrying amounts of financial instruments reflect their fair value.

(e) Sensitivity disclosure analysis

Taking inlo account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and managements knowledge and experience of the financial markets,
Council believes the following movements are 'reasonably possible' over the next 12 months:

~ A parallel shift of +1% and -1% in market interest rates {AUD) from year-end rales of 2.47%.

These movements will not have a material impact on the valuation of Council's financial assels and fabilities, nor will they have a materal impact on the
results of Council's operations.

7.4 Falr value measurement
Fair value hierarchy
Council's financial assels and liabilities are not valued in accordance with the fair value hierarchy , Councif's financial assets and liabilities are measured
at amortised cost. '

Council measures certain assels and liabilities at fair value where required or permitted by Australian Accounting Standards. AASB 13 Fair value
measurement, aims to improve consistency and reduce complexily by providing a definttion of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement
and disclosure requirements for use across Australian Accounting Standards.

AASB 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received fo sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly ransaction between market
participants at ihe measurement date. Fair vatue under AASB 13 is an exit price regardless of whether that price is diractly observable o estimated using
another valuation fechnique.

All assets and liabilities for which falr value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are calegorised within a fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant o the falr value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant fo the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Councll has determined classes of assets and liabilitles on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of
the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hirarchy as explained above.

In addition, Councit determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the falr value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Revalualion

Subsequent o the inlial recognition of assets, non-current physical assets, other than plant and equipment, are measured al their fair valus, being the
price that would be received fo sell an asset (or paid fo ransfer a liability) in an orderly iransaction between market participants at the measurement
date. At balance date, the Council reviewed the carrying value of the individual classes of assets measured at fair value to ensure that each asset
materially approximated ifs fair value. Where the carrying value materially differed from the fair value at balance date, the class of assetwas revalued.

Fair value valuations are determined in accordance with a valuation hierarchy, Changes to the valuation hierarchy will only occur if an exteral change
in the restrictions or limilations of use of an asset result in changes to the permissible or practica! highest and best use of the asset. In addition, Council
undertakes a formal revaluation of land, buildings, and infrastruciure assets on a regular basis ranging from 1 to 3 years. The valuation is performed
either by experienced council officers or independent experts.

Where ihe assels are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve except to the extent that an increment
reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset that had been recognised as an expense in which case the increment s recognised as revenue up
{o the amount of the expense. Revaluation decrements are recognised as an expense except where prior increments are included in the asset
revaluation reserve for that class of asset in which case the decrement is taken to the reserve fo the extent of the remaining increments. Within the same
class of assels. revalialion Incremenis and decrements within the vaar are offsat.
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Impairment of assets

At each reporiing date, the Council reviews the carrying value of its assets fo determine whether there is any indication that these assels have been
impaired. If such an indlcation exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of disposat and value in
use, is compared to the assels carrying value. Any excess of the assels camying value over lls recoverable amount Is expensed fo the comprehensive
income statement, unless the asset is canfed at the revalued amount in which case, the impairment loss is recognised directly against the revaluation
surplus in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the Impalrment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that same
class of asset.

Note 8 Other matters

Balance at
beginning of reporting Balance at end of
8.1 Reserves . period  Increment (decrement) reporting perlod
(a) Asset revaluation reserves $ $ $
2018
Property
Land 24,645,565 - 24,645,565
Buildings 41,262,389 541,519 41,803,908
65,907,954 541,619 66,449,473
Infrastructure
Roads 98,182,816 (3,667,044) 94,515,772
Bridges 34,262,241 333,332 34,595,673
Fooftpaths and cycleways 1,600,498 - 1,600,498
Drainage 4,548,109 (521,991) 4,026,118
Kerb and channel 3,011,415 (56,774) 2,954,641
Other infrastructure 16,205 - 16,205
141,621,284 (3,912477) 137,708,807
Total asset revaluation reserves 207,528,238 (3,370,958) 204,158,280
2017
Property
Land 24,994,006 (348,441) 24,645,565
Buildings 42,453,352 {1,190,963) 41,262,389
67,447,358 (1,539,404) 65,907,954
Infrastructure
Roads 87,967,661 10,215,155 98,182,816
Bridges 34,019,376 242,865 34,262,241
Foolpaths 1,279,157 321,341 1,600,498
Drainage 3,977,305 570,804 4,548,100
Kerb and channel 3,011,415 - 3,011,415
Other Infrastructure 16,205 - 16,205
130,271,119 14,350,165 141,621,284
Total asset revaluation reserves 197,718,477 9,810,761 207,529,238

The asset revaluation reserve Is used to record the increased (net) value of Council's assets over time.

Balance at
beginning of reporting Transfer from Balance at end of
period accumulated surplus reporting perlod
$ $ $
(b) Other reserves
2018
Bridge replacement reserve 600,000 150,000 750,000
Open space reserve 112,250 (3,292) 108,958
Total Other reserves 712,250 146,708 858,958
2017
Bridge replacement reserve 600,000 - 600,000
Open space reserve 100,400 11,850 112,250
Total Other reserves 700,400 11,850 712,250
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9.2 Reconcillation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus/{deficit) $ $
Surplusi{deficit) for the year 856,363 5,191,380
Depreciation 5,802,643 5,347,074
Non-cash notlonal legal expense - non-current assets held for resale - 4,331
{Profif) Loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (97,362) 164,466
Written down value of infrastructure assets replaced 615,521 403,260
Borrowing costs 54,019 77,703
Trust funds and other deposits repaid 541,934 (414,298)
Share of net profits of assoclates 8,514 {2,981)
Contributions - Non-monetary assets/found assels (1,285,840) (662,892)
WIP expended 2016/17 - reclassifled as operating expense 2017/18 4,839 -
Payments from Open Space Reserve (8,292) -
Change In assels and liabilities:
{Increase)/decrease in frade and other receivables (414,477) 3,862
{increase)/Decrease in other assets (190,535) (201,407)
Increasel{decreass) in frade and other payables (314,717) 408,744
{Increase)/decrease in Inventories 1,632 (1,859)
Increase/{Decrease) in provisions 3,711,915 130,030
Net cash provided by/{used in} operating activities 9,285,457 10,547,413

8.3 Superannuation

Council makes the majority of its employer superannuation conlributions in respect of its employees to the Local Authorities Superannuation
Fund {the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membarship, accumulation and defined benefl, each of which Is funded differently.
Obligaions for confributions to the Fund are recognised as an expense In the Comprehensive Income Statement when they are made or due.

Accumulation

The Fund's accumulation calegories, Vision MySuperVision Super Saver, receive both employer and employee contributions on a progressive
basis. Employer contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee earnings (for the year ended 30 June 2018, this was 9.5%
as required under Superannuation Guarantee legistation).

Defined Benefit

Council does not use defined benefit accounting for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined Benefit category. This Is because
the Fund's Defined Benefit category is a pooled mulii-employer sponsored plan,

There is no proportional split of the defined benefit liabilities, assets or costs between the participating employers as the defined benefit
obligation is a floating obligation between the participating employers and the only fime that the aggregate obfigation is allocated to specific
employers is when a call is made. As a result, the level of participation of Council in the Fund cannot be measured as a percentage compared
with other participating employers. Therefore, the Fund Actuary is unable to aflocate beneftt iabilities, assets and costs between employers for
the purposes of AASB 118.

Funding arrangements
Gounc makes employer contributions fo the Defined Benefit category of the Fund al rates defermined by the Truslee on the advice of the Fund

Actuary.

As at 30 June 2017, a full friennial actuarial investigation was completed. The vested benefitindex {VBI) of the Defined Benefit category of
which Coundil s a conlibuting employer was 103.1%. To determine the VBY, the Fund Actuary used the following long-term assumptions:

Net investment retums 6.5% pa
Salary information 3.5% pa
Price Inflation {CPI) 2.5% pa.

Vision Super has advised that the estimated VB! at quarter end June 2018 was 106%.

The VB is to be used as the primary funding indicator. Because the VBI was above 100%, the 30 June 2017 actuarial investigation determined
the Defined Benefit category was in a satisfactory financial position and that no change was necessary to the Defined Benefit category's funding
arrangements from prior years.
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Employer contributions

Funding calls

f the Defined Benefit category is in an unsalisfactory financial position at an acluaral investigation or the Defined Beneli category's VBI is
below its shortfall limit at any time other than the date of the actuarial investigation, the Defined Benefit category has a shortfall for the purposes
of SPS 160 and the Fund is required fo put a plan In place so that the shorifall is fully funded within three years of the shortfall occurrdng. The
Fund monitors its VBI on a quarterly basis and the Fund has set ifs shortfall limit at 97%.

In the event that the Fund Actuary determines that there Is a shortfall based on the above requirement, the Fund's participating employers
(Including Council) are required to make an employer contribution to cover the shorifall. Using the agreed methodology, the shortfall amount is
apportioned between the participating employers based on fhe pre-1 July 1993 and post-30 June 1993 service llabllities of the Fund's Defined
Benelfit category, together with the employer’s payroll at 30 June 1993 and at the date the shortfall has been calculated.

Due to the nature of the contractual obligations between the participating employers and the Fund, and that the Fund includes lifetime
pensioners and their reversionary beneficiarles, it is unitkely that the Fund will be wound up, if there is a surplus In the Fund, the surplus cannot
be retumed fo the participating employers. In the event that a pariicipating employer Is wound-up, the defined benefil obligations of that
employer will be transferred to that employer's successor.

2017 triennial actuarial investigation surplus amounts
The Fund's trlennial investigation as at 30 June 2017 identified the following in the defined benefit category of which Councll is a contributing
employer:

A fotal service liability surplus of $193.5 miflion.

A discounted accrued benefits surplus of $228.8 million.

The VB surplus means that the market value of the fund's assets supporting the defined benefit obligations exceed the vested benefils that the
defined benefit members would have been entitled fo if they had alt exited on 30 June 2017, Council was nofified of the 30 June 2017 VBI
during August 2017,

2018 interim actuarial investigation

An interim acluarial investigation will be conducted for the Fund's position as at 30 June 2018. itis anficipated that this actuarial investigation will
be compleled in Decamber 2018.
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Description of municipality

Strathbogie Shire is a rural municipality located approximately two hours from the Melbourne CBD
and covers 330,326 hectares. We have diverse and picturesque communities served by townships
such as Euroa, Nagambie, Viclet Town, Avenel, Longwood, Ruffy and Strathbogie with a population
of over 10,000 and growing. The shire has an ageing population with 38% of residents aged 60 years
and over. Approximately eight out of ten residents were born in Australia and about 5% of people
came from countries where English was not their first language.

The Strathbogie Shire has a rural economic base of wool, grain, sheep and cattle production,
extensive vineyards, world class wineries and a wide range of intensive cool climate horticultural
enterprises. The region is also known as the Horse Capital of Victoria due to its ever expanding
horse industry. Thoroughbred breeding studs are the cornerstone of this important industry, with
many prestigious Melbourne Cup winners bred and trained in the shire. Nagambie Is also the
birthplace of Black Caviar, the world champion horse, and now has a life-size bronze statue sitting
pride of place at Jacobson’s Outlook.
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Other Information
For the year ended 30 June 2018

1. Basis of preparation

Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual report. The
performance statement includes the results of the prescribed sustainable capacity, service
performance and financial performance indicators and measures together with a description of the
municipal district and an explanation of material variations in the results. This statement has been
prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and Local Government
(Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

Where applicable the results in the performance statement have been prepared on accounting
bases consistent with those reported in the Financial Statements. The other results are based on
information drawn from council information systems or from third parties (e.g. Australian Bureau of
Statistics).

The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the prescribed
financial performance indicators and measures, the results forecast by the council’s strategic

" resource plan. The Local Government {Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires
explanation of any material variations in the results contained in the performance statement.
Council has adopted materiality thresholds relevant to each indicator and measure and explanations
have not been provided for variations below the materiality thresholds unless the variance is
considered to be material because of its nature,

The forecast figures inciuded in the performance statement are those adopted by council in its
strategic resource plan on 26 June 2018 and which forms part of the council plan. The strategic
resource plan includes estimates based on key assumptions about the future that were relevant at
the time of adoption and aimed at achieving sustainability over the long term. Detailed information
on the actual financial results is contained in the General Purpose Financial Statements. The
strategic resource plan can be obtained by contacting council.

14



Certification of the Performance Statement

In my opjnjon, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in accordance with the
Local Goldrnment Act 1989 and the Local Government {Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

David Roff |

Principal Accounting Officer
Date

Euroa, Victoria

In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of the Shire of Strathbogie for the year
ended 30 June 2018 presents fairly the results of council’s performance in accordance with the Local
Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and results in
relation to service performance, financial performance and sustainable capacity.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars in
the performance statement to be misleading or inaccurate,

We have been authorised by the council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014 to certify this performance statement in its final form.

Amanda McClaren
Councillor

Date: »75/9//5’

Euroa, Victoria

Graeme Williams j

Councillor
D\ 25/9//8
Ei Victoria

teve\Crawcour

Chief Executive Officer
té'( eptember 2018

Euroaq, Victoria
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Governance and Management Item

Community engagement policy (policy

Assessment

- S ! No policy
1 outlml.ng Cc?uncﬂ R commltrTlent to Draft prepared and being reviewed before submission to
engaging with the community on matters .
of public interest) Council
Community engagement guidelines Guidelines adopted 12 August 2014.Being reviewed along with
5 (guidelines to assist staff to determine Community Engagement Policy
when and how to engage with the
community)
Strategic Resource Plan (plan under
section 126 of the Act outlining the Adopted in accordance with section 126 of the Act
3 financial and non-financial resources Date adopted 26 June 2018
required for at least the next 4 financial
years)
Annual budget (plan under section 130 of
the Act setting out the services to be Adopted in accordance with section 130 of the Act
4 provided and initiatives to be undertaken Date adopted 26 June 2018
over the next 12 months and the funding
and other resources required)
Plans
Date of operation of current plans :
General overarching 28 October 2016
Asset management plans (plans that set Trfmsport 21 October 2016
3 out the asset maintenance and renewal Bridges 16 March 2015
needs for key infrastructure asset classes | Water(drainage) 16 December 2016
for at least the next 10 years) Land 26 January 2013
Buildings 16 September 2016
Open space 9 January 2013
Plant and Equipment 27 November 2012
Culture and Heritage 27 November 2012
Rating strategy (strategy setting out the
6 ratingg structugl}:a(of Coug:cil to le%/y rates SRRy
Adopted with Budget 26 June 2018
and charges)
Policy
Risk policy ( policy outlining Council's Date of operation of current policy :
7 commitment and approach to minimising 15 December 2015
the risks to Council's operations) New policy to be presented to September 2018 Audit
Committee
Fraud policy (policy outlining Council's Policy
8 commitment and approach to minimising Date of operation of current policy:
the risk of fraud) 20 February 2018
Municigal emergency management plan Prepared and maintained in accordance with Section 20 of the
(plan under section 20 of the Emergency X
9 Management Act 1986 for emergency Emergency Management Act 1986 . Date ofpreparatlon 15
X December 2015. Reviewed and due for audit November 2018
prevention, response and recovery)
Procurement policy (policy under section
186A of the Local Government Act 1989 Prepared and approved in accordance with Section 186A of
10 outlining the matters, practices and the Local Government Act 1989.
procedures that will apply to all purchases | Date of approval :26 June 2018
of goods, services and works)
Business continuity plan (plan setting out No plan
i § theactions tP'1at will b? faken to ensur.e Draft completed. Manager review 17/8/18 .To be finalised
that key services continue to operate in
the event of a disaster)
Disaster recovery plan (plan setting out the
12 actions that will be undertaken to recover | Plan
and restore business capability in the Date of approval :24 May 2017
event of a disaster)
Risk management framework (framework Fraimenyark .
L . . Date of operation of current framework :
13 outlining Council's approach to managing

risks to the Council's operations)

15 December 2015
Due for review Dec 2018.
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Audit Committee (advisory committee of
Council under section 139 of the Act
whose role is to oversee the integrity of a
Council's financial reporting, processes to
manage risks to the Council's operations
and for compliance with applicable legal,
ethical, and regulatory requirements)

Established in accordance with Section 139 of the Local
Government Act

Date of establishment :

20 November 2001

15

Internal audit (independent accounting
professionals engaged by the Council to
provide analyses and recommendations
aimed at improving Council's governance,
risk and management controls)

Engaged .Date of engagement of current provider : 15 May
2018

16

Performance reporting framework (a set of
indicators measuring financial and non-
financial performance, including the
performance indicators referred to in
section 131 of the Act)

Framework
Date of operation of current framework:
1 July 2015

17

Council Plan reporting (report reviewing
the performance of the Council against the
Council Plan, including the results in
relation to the strategic indicators, for the
first six months of the financial year)

Produced quarterly for Council
Date presented to Council
21/11/17,20/3/18,17/7/18

18

Financial reporting (quarterly statements
to Council under section 138 of the Act
comparing budgeted revenue and
expenditure with actual revenue and
expenditure)

Statements presented to Council in accordance with Section
138(1) of the Local Government Act

Date statements presented:
21/11/17,19/12/17,20/2/18,20/3/18,17/4/18,15/5/18,26/6/18

19

Risk reporting (six-monthly reports of
strategic risks to Council's operations, their
likelihood and consequences of occurring
and risk minimisation strategies)

Reports
Audit Committee have been involved in risk review

20

Performance reporting (six-monthly
reports of indicators measuring the results
against financial and non-financial
performance, including performance
indicators referred to in section 131 of the
Act)

Reports
Business Management System reported to Council monthly

21

Annual report (annual report under
sections 131, 132 and 133 of the Act to the
community containing a report of
operations and audited financial
performance statements)

Considered at a meeting of Council in accordance with Section
134 of the Local Government Act
Date statements presented 19 September 2017

22

Councillor Code of Conduct (Code under
section 76C of the Act setting out the
conduct principles and the dispute
resolution processes to be followed by
Councillors)

Code of conduct reviewed in accordance with section 76C of
the Act
Date adopted : 21/02/2017

23

Delegations (a document setting out the
powers, duties and functions of Council
and the Chief Executive Officer that have
been delegated to members of staff)

Delegations reviewed in accordance with section 98(6) of the
Act
Date of review: 21/11/17,19/12/17

24

Meeting procedures (a local law governing
the conduct of meetings of Council and
special committees)

Meeting procedures local law made in accordance with section
91(1) of the Act and adopted by Council 16/12/2014

| ceftify hat this information presents fairly the status of Council’s governance and management arrangements.

v

teve Crawcour
Chief Executive Officer
ated': 25 September 2018

Cr Amanda McClaren
Mayor
Dated 25 September 2018




